eeds

CITY COUNCIL

Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY DEVELOPMENT)

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on
Wednesday, 17th February, 2016 at 10.30 am

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 10.00 a.m.)

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
A Castle Harewood;
D Cohen Alwoodley;
P Davey City and Hunslet;
R Harington Gipton and Harehills;
J Heselwood Bramley and Stanningley;
M Ingham Burmantofts and Richmond
Hill;
S McKenna Garforth and Swillington;
C Townsley Horsforth;
P Truswell (Chair) Middleton Park;
P Wadsworth Guiseley and Rawdon;
J Walker Headingley;

Please note: Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded

Agenda compiled by:
Guy Close

Scrutiny Support Unit
Tel: 39 50878

Principal Scrutiny Adviser:
Sandra Pentelow
Tel: 24 74792

Produced on Recycled Paper



AGENDA

Item
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).

(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting).

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1 To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2 To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3 If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:-

RESOLVED - That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:

No exempt items have been identified.




Item
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

LATE ITEMS

To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.

(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY
INTERESTS

To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of
the Members’ Code of Conduct.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES

To receive any apologies for absence and
notification of substitutes.

MINUTES - 27 JANUARY 2016

To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the
meeting held on 27 January 2016.

INQUIRY INTO BUS SERVICE PROVISION

To receive a joint report from the Head of Scrutiny
and Member Development and West Yorkshire
Combined Authority providing an overview of the
key points from the draft Bus Plan document and
the associated forthcoming public and stakeholder
consultation.

LEEDS CYCLING STARTS HERE (TOUR DE
FRANCE LEGACY) - UPDATE

To consider a report from the Director of City
Development providing an update on the
preparation of the Leeds Cycling Starts Here
(LCSH) Strategy, Action Plan and long term cycling
‘Ambition and Strategy’ for the city.

25 -
38



Item Ward/Equal Item Not Page
No Opportunities | Open No
9 WORK SCHEDULE 39 -
50
To agree the Board’s work schedule for the
remainder of the municipal year.
10 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

Wednesday, 30 March 2016 at 10.30am
(pre-meeting for all Board Members at 10.00am)

THIRD PARTY RECORDING

Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those
not present to see or hear the proceedings either as
they take place (or later) and to enable the reporting of
those proceedings. A copy of the recording protocol is
available from the contacts on the front of this agenda.

Use of Recordings by Third Parties — code of practice

a) Any published recording should be
accompanied by a statement of when and
where the recording was made, the context of
the discussion that took place, and a clear
identification of the main speakers and their
role or title.

b) Those making recordings must not edit the
recording in a way that could lead to
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the
proceedings or comments made by attendees.
In particular there should be no internal editing
of published extracts; recordings may start at
any point and end at any point but the material
between those points must be complete.




50

51

52

53

54

Agenda Iltem 6

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY DEVELOPMENT)
WEDNESDAY, 27TH JANUARY, 2016
PRESENT:  Councillor P Truswell in the Chair
Councillors A Castle, D Cohen,

R Grahame, R Harington, J Heselwood,
M Ingham, S McKenna and B Urry

Late Iltems

The Board received the following supplementary information in relation to
agenda item 8, Flooding:

e Updated information submitted to the Executive Board on 21 January
2016 and draft minutes of the Executive Board

The above information was not available at the time of agenda despatch, but
was subsequently made available on the Council’s website.

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
There were no disclosable pecuniary interests declared to the meeting.
Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes

Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillor C Townsley, Councillor J
Walker and Councillor P Davey. Councillor J Walker and Councillor P Davey
were substituted by Councillor B Urry and Councillor R Grahame.

Minutes - 16 December 2015

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2015,
be approved as a correct record, subject to an amendment under minute no.
41, changing Halifax Building Society to The Halifax.

Scrutiny Inquiry into Bus Service Provision (Session 1)

The Director of City Development submitted a report which provided the
Scrutiny Board with the information required to undertake the first session of
the inquiry into bus service provision.

The following representatives were in attendance and responded to Members’
queries and comments:

- Councillor Richard Lewis, Executive Board Member (Regeneration,
Transport and Planning)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 17th February, 2016

Page 1



55

Councillor Keith Wakefield, Chair of Transport Committee

Gary Bartlett, Chief Highways Officer

Liz Bennett, Projects and Monitoring, Transportation

Tom Gifford, West Yorkshire Combined Authority, Project Manager
Neale Wallace, West Yorkshire Combined Authority, Bus Services
Manager

Jonathan Bray, Urban Transport Group

The key areas of discussion were:

The emerging Buses Bill, devolution and the need for simpler
legislation.

2008 Transport Act, quality contracts and NEXUS (North East
Combined Authority).

The development of a Single Transport Plan which will set out the bus
strategy.

The decline in bus patronage since deregulation during a period of
economic growth and an increase in train patronage and car use.

The opportunity that bus travel presents in terms of solving traffic
problems and supporting employment.

Regulation of bus operators, passenger rights and complaint
processes.

The role of West Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA) in supporting
non-commercial services.

The negative effects due to the lack of bus operator competition in
West Yorkshire.

The need for simplified ticketing and the complex fare structures
currently in place.

The issues created by commercial market led networks and the lack of
orbital connectivity which links villages, towns and districts.

The Elland Road park and ride model which highlighted the attributes
when planning a whole service in terms of quality and reliability.

RESOLVED - The report was noted and the evidence considered as part of
the inquiry.

Flooding

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report to
facilitate discussion regarding the recent flooding in Leeds.

The following information was appended to the report:

Executive Board, Storm Eva cover report, 21 January 2016
Executive Board, Storm Eva report annex, 21 January 2016
Draft minute no. 120 of Executive Board, 21 January 2016
Business Recovery Impact Examples

Draft Leeds Strategic Recovery Plan.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 17th February, 2016

Page 2



56

The following representatives were in attendance and responded to Members’
queries and comments:

- Councillor Richard Lewis, Executive Board Member (Regeneration,
Transport and Planning)
- Gary Bartlett, Chief Highways Officer.

The key areas of discussion were:

e Assessment and inspection of infrastructure damage, including Linton
Bridge. Infrastructure damage was estimated at £7m. Government is
being lobbied for funding to meet costs.

¢ Impact on businesses and employees.

e The meeting with the Secretary of State when attendees from Leeds
were advised that there is no funding in the Environment Agency
programme for flood alleviation.

e The feasibility review of phase 2 and phase 3 of the flood alleviation
scheme. Funding is being sought to start this process.

e The requirement for a commitment from Government for funding to
prevent flooding and the requirement to consider the impact on
neighbouring authorities.

e Local responses and how communities can be involved in dealing with
a problem as it arises.

e Co-ordinated service working arrangements for traffic management
and gully maintenance across the City.

e Consideration of flood risk on land identified for housing, the need to
build appropriately in flood risk areas and ensure that building work is
resilient and done to appropriate standards.

e The need to focus on what can be achieved through government
investment, water management in partnership with other organisations.

e Tributes to all who assisted, responded and helped.

RESOLVED - The Scrutiny Board considered the information provided and
resolved to receive the Flood Risk Management Strategy at the March
meeting. The Board will also consider any additional aspects as deemed
appropriate at that meeting.

(Councillor J Heselwood left the meeting at 12.40pm at the conclusion of this
item)

Financial Health Monitoring (City Development) - Budget Update Period
8, 2015/16 and Budget Proposals for 2016/17 Consultation

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which
updated the Scrutiny Board on the City Development 2015/16 financial
position (period 8) and consultation on the City Development budget
proposals for 2016/17.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 17th February, 2016

Page 3



The following information was appended to the report:

- City Development Budget 2015/16, period 8

- Executive Board report, 16 December 2015, Initial Budget Proposals
for 2016/16 (City Development extract)

- City Development Budget Pressures and Savings 2016/17

The following representatives were in attendance and responded to Members’
queries and comments:

- Martin Farrington, Director of City Development
- Simon Criddle, Head of Finance, City Development

The key areas of discussion were:

e The projected underspend on the 2015/16 budget.

e Key proposals for 2016/17, planned efficiencies, changes to services
and additional income.

e The shortfall of advertising revenue. This has been managed by
achieving efficiencies in other areas of the budget. A number of sites
will come to fruition in 2016/17 generating income.

e Clarification about the reduction in planning services staffing.

e Proposed 2016/17 funding arrangements for the book fund within
Cultural Services.

RESOLVED -
The Scrutiny Board:
a) Noted the financial position of City Development period 8, 2015/16
b) Considered the initial 2016/17 budget proposals relevant to the
Scrutiny Board’s portfolio and did not make recommendation for
consideration by the Executive Board in February 2016.
Quarter 2 2015/16 Best Council Plan Performance Report
The Director of City Development submitted a report which provided a
summary of performance against the strategic objectives for City
Development.

The following information was appended to the report:

- City Development Best Council Plan Performance Summary Quarter 2
2015/16

The following representatives were in attendance and responded to Members’
queries and comments:

- Martin Farrington, Director of City Development.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 17th February, 2016

Page 4



58

59

The key areas of discussion were:

e The trend in KSI's and not meeting the annual target. The Board was
advised that to counter this various publicity campaigns were due to
start.

e Leeds Let's Get Active Funding and the continuation of the scheme.
The Board was advised that funding had not yet been secured and the
scheme was therefore at risk.

RESOLVED - That the Board notes the Quarter 2 performance information.
Work Schedule

A report was submitted by the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
which detailed the Scrutiny Board’s draft work programme for the current

municipal year.

RESOLVED - The Board noted the content of the report and agreed the
revised work schedule.

Date and Time of Next Meeting

Wednesday, 17 February 2016 at 10.30am (pre-meeting for all Board
Members at 10.00am)

(The meeting concluded at 1.25pm)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 17th February, 2016

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Report author: Tom Gifford WYCA & Sandra
ﬁm Pentelow

s CITY COUNCIL Tel: 0113 2474792

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development and WYCA
Report to Scrutiny Board (City Development)
Date: 17 February 2016

Subject: Inquiry into Bus Service Provision

Are specific electoral Wards affected? [ ] Yes X No
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and L] Yes X No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [ ] Yes X No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [] Yes X No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. The Scrutiny Board at its meeting on the 17th of June 2015 resolved to undertake an
inquiry to consider bus service provision.

2. The Board expressed a desire to have a clear understanding of current service delivery
and how this supports our objectives as a Council to connect residents and visitors to
employment, training, culture and leisure and support the economic prosperity of the
city. The Bus Scrutiny meeting on 27 January 2016 provided background information
on:

e De-regulation and the West Yorkshire bus context

e Key Achievements

¢ Role of the Highway Authority & WYCA in the Bus System
e Bus Services and the economy

e Bus Strategy and Single Transport Plan

e Partnership and Quality Contract Legislation

3. This report for the meeting on 17 February 2016 sets out further details on the
development of the West Yorkshire Bus Strategy.

4. Further meetings are planned to cover stakeholder involvement and operator
representations.

Page 7



Recommendations

5. Members are requested to note and comment on this report.

Page 8



1.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Purpose of this report

This report provides Members with overview of the key points from the draft Bus
Plan document and the associated forthcoming public and stakeholder
consultation.

Overview

The Bus Scrutiny meeting on 27 January 2016 provided background information
on:

De-regulation and the West Yorkshire bus context

Key Achievements

Role of the Highway Authority & WYCA in the Bus System
Bus Services and the economy

Bus Strategy and Single Transport Plan

Partnership and Quality Contract Legislation

The report set out that there is an on-going debate about the effectiveness of bus
de-regulation, with some strongly held opposing views. Since the January
meeting, the Department for Transport has issued the “Local Bus Market Study”
KPMG report. The report concludes that “Each local bus market is unique and
each requires a tailored approach to help it deliver local objectives”. A copy of the
Executive Summary of the report is included as background in Appendix 1.

WYCA is the Local Transport Authority for West Yorkshire and through detailed
consultation with districts is developing a refreshed West Yorkshire Single
Transport Plan, to update the existing Local Transport Plan, bringing a range of
current strategic transport plans and programmes into one single plan and provide
a clear statement of the Combined Authority’s vision for transport.

A key element of the Single Transport Plan is the Bus Strategy for West
Yorkshire. This will be a 10 to 15 year strategy to set out what we want to achieve
from the Bus System. WYCA are currently working the five West Yorkshire District
Councils, as well as with a range of stakeholders, to develop the principles and
vision. A full Public and Stakeholder Consultation is planned to commence in May
(shortly after the local election purdah period) and run for 12 weeks.

The draft Bus Plan document is being presented to WYCA Transport Committee
on 26 February 2016. Therefore, this report to LCC Scrutiny is in advance of
Transport Committee reviewing, commenting or approving the draft Bus Plan
document or considered the proposed approach to consultation on Bus Plan.

Page 9



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Main issues
Overview

WYCA Transport Committee has previously agreed that the Single Transport Plan
should incorporate a complementary workstream developing an updated West
Yorkshire Bus Strategy, which is to be developed through full public and
stakeholder consultation

An initial, stakeholder led consultation took place during October and November
2015. This Phase 1 consultation included a workshop on 25 September 2015 with
Transport Committee to consider the proposed way forward for developing the
Bus Strategy. Phase 1 consultation has now concluded and points raised through
the consultation have informed the development of the full Bus Plan document.

Bus Plan is based around the ‘the outcomes/outputs we want to achieve’. This
strategy document therefore looks to set the outcomes rather than predetermine
the preferred regulatory or commercial approach to delivering the strategy. This
Bus Plan has a 10-15 year planning horizon, and it is envisaged that as part of the
option assessment, the forthcoming Business Case will consider the detailed
programme, as well as affordability of individual measures and options (e.g.
Partnership or Franchise options), to enable the strategy to be realised in
accordance with the HM Treasury Green Book methodology.

Bus Plan is developed based on existing evidence and sets out:
o The need for the Bus Plan;

o The strategic and policy context that frames the importance of the bus in
supporting economic, environmental and social goals across West Yorkshire,
describing the fundamental economic challenges facing West Yorkshire
today and outlining the economic growth plans for the area;

o The role of the bus system in meeting the transport requirements of this
economic growth, and in supporting broader environmental and social goals.
Bus Plan therefore looks at the evidence that underpins the importance of
buses in helping deliver these goals. It draws upon a range of research to
highlight the key role that buses play in delivering economic, social,
environmental, health and well-being policies;

o Trends in bus and other modes of travel in West Yorkshire highlighting the
crucial importance of achieving growth in bus usage in order to achieve a
financially sustainable bus network;

o The issues that would need to be addressed in order to achieve such growth.
This is examined from the perspective of those who use buses at the
moment and identify which opportunities need to be seized upon in order to
retain current users, and what needs to be done to attract new customers;
and

Page 10



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

o A vision for buses in West Yorkshire and the key principles that will underpin

the Bus Plan and from there a framework for delivery of the strategy.
Bus Plan: Overview

Background to the Bus Plan

This Bus Plan is designed to help West Yorkshire achieve more from its buses. It
has been prepared by the West Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA) in
conjunction with district partners and sets out the vision for the West Yorkshire
bus network, the key principles that underpin the plan, and how it will help support
the growth of the bus market.

The Bus Plan has been developed in the context of the Leeds City Region
Strategic Economic Plan, the West Yorkshire Single Transport Plan (of which this
is a daughter document), the West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund, the West
Yorkshire Low Emission Strategy, preparatory work for High Speed Rail (HS2 &
Northern Powerhouse Rail) and the plans being developed by Transport for the
North to support the Northern Powerhouse.

It has been shaped by local and national evidence and informed by stakeholder
views on the vision and principles. It will be further shaped through the
forthcoming consultation.

Rationale for the Bus Plan

Fundamentally, buses are important. More people in West Yorkshire travel by
bus than any other form of public transport. Buses take people to work; to school,
college and university; to hospital; to shops; and to a range of other social and
leisure activities across West Yorkshire. While doing this they provide significant
economic, social and environmental benefit to the wider community.

In addition, there is an extensive body of evidence on how buses contribute to
economic development and regeneration, how they support town and city centre
economies and rural communities, and how they help to achieve environmental
and quality of life goals.

Opportunity for growth

Overall, the opportunity to grow the bus system is significant. Analysis presented
in Bus Plan demonstrates that bus patronage growth of less than 25% over the
next decade could endanger the delivery of the planned level of forecast
economic growth. The target is to maximise patronage growth, with the ambition
of delivering 25% patronage growth across West Yorkshire.

Vision & Objectives

The draft vision for the Bus Plan is:

Our vision is of a financially sustainable and growing bus system that can deliver
West Yorkshire’s economic, environmental and quality of life ambitions set out in
the Single Economic Plan and West Yorkshire Transport Plan.

Page 11



3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

From this vision the following draft objectives for the Bus Plan have been defined:

o To support economic growth in West Yorkshire by improving connectivity to
areas of economic opportunity;

o To support more equal access to opportunity by improving access to health
services, education and employment, leisure and retail destinations;

. To deliver a step change in customer expectations/perception of the bus
system with digitally enhanced provision of the service that customers
demand and which is considered to represent good value for money; and,

o To support environmental aims by delivering a significantly reduced
emissions footprint.

Plans for delivery

The scale of this target will shape delivery plans and highlights the need for a
significant suite of interventions, and it is appropriate at this stage to define the
types of investment and initiative that will support the delivery.

To deliver the vision and objectives, putting the customer first is at the heart of the
strategy. A suite of complementary measures are needed that align with the
strategic challenges faced by WYCA and its partners, and deliver customer
aspirations for buses, to enable sustainable growth of services and patronage.

Bus Plan is anticipated to set the following outputs/outcomes as being essential to
the delivering Bus Plan objectives and the ambitious growth target. These
outputs/outcomes have been developed based on analysis of the local problems
and issues with the bus system:

o Creation of a single, integrated and strategically planned bus network,
presented as a single brand entity;

o A simple, unified and affordable ticket and product range (which reflects
geography and travel patterns, rather than operators) for all customers
across West Yorkshire. The ticketing and product range needs to provide for
bus travel which is affordable and offers value for money. The emphasis will
be on growing the market for bus as a whole;

o A single communications, information and branding identity covering all
aspects of the bus system, regardless of who operates the vehicles. This
includes where and how to access information before a journey;

o Investment in customer focused interventions to provide a safe, comfortable
customer experience and modern, accessible, clean vehicles that reduce
harmful emissions. The Bus Plan will focus investment on a suite of
customer-led interventions that generate customer trust and respond to
individual customer’s needs and requirements; and

Page 12



3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

o A modern, clean bus system operated with vehicles that do not pollute the
local environment.

Bus Plan: Public and Stakeholder Consultation

The purpose of the forthcoming public and stakeholder consultation is to gain
feedback and comments on the Bus Plan document. The objectives of the
consultation are:

o To present proposals to the widest range of people and representative
groups affected by them;

o To provide them with an opportunity to give their views; and
o To give full consideration to their views in finalising the Plan.

It is proposed that subject to WYCA Transport Committee approval, the
consultation will commence in early May (i.e. shortly after the Local Election
purdah period has been ended) and would run for 12 weeks.

A range of consultation methods including interactive and digital based initiatives,
focus groups, workshops and public drop-in sessions will be used. An additional
phone-based survey, with a statistically representative sample of the West
Yorkshire population is also planned.

A short consultation document will be the principal mechanism for providing
information about the Bus Strategy and its principles to West Yorkshire residents
and businesses and to key stakeholders. Consultation materials will provide
enough information for respondents to make informed decisions. The
consultation document will be accompanied by a questionnaire; an online and a
paper version of the questionnaire will be prepared. It is anticipated that the
survey will provide an opportunity for respondents to provide feedback on Bus
Plan. Copies of consultation materials will be available on line as well as printed
material available from WYCA, local libraries and at consultation events.

A wider list of Stakeholders has been collated. All Stakeholders identified for the
Phase 1 consultation will be contacted and 1:1 briefings and workshops will be
offered to a larger number of organisations / groups. It is anticipated that
MetroMessenger will be used to create bespoke messages. It is anticipated that
we will organise some sector specific workshops e.g. for the health sector or
business community. Additionally, efforts will be made to consult with equality
groups.

A series of public exhibitions / drop-in sessions will take place across West
Yorkshire, with 10-15 venues identified per district. These will take place
throughout the consultation period. Locations will include bus stations, shopping
centres, town centres. We hope to engage with bus users and non-bus users at
these sessions. Existing meetings are being identified where Bus Plan could be
included as an agenda item, including District events and forums. Further 1:1
meetings will be held with key Stakeholders, particularly bus operators.

Page 13



3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

Next Steps

Once the consultation has concluded, the results will be analysed and full
consideration will be given to the views expressed and a response will be issued
explaining any decisions made. An updated version of the Bus Plan which reflects
the conclusions of the consultation will be taken to the WYCA for approval and
adoption later in 2016.

During 2016/17, a further piece of work will consider the options for best delivering
the Bus Plan outputs/outcomes. This work will be brought together through the
production of a Business Case. This Business Case will consider the potential
delivery routes including the various Partnership options and also franchising. The
Business Case will consider the detailed programme, risks, as well as affordability
of individual measures to enable the strategy to be realised in accordance with the
HM Treasury Green Book methodology.

It is recognised that the delivery options available to WYCA may be dependent on
whether a Devolution deal for the area has been agreed, as this is expected to
determine the powers WYCA can through access the forthcoming Buses Bill. As
outlined at the January 2016 Bus Scrutiny session, the Buses Bill is expected to
provide Local Transport Authorities, elected Mayors and bus operators with a
more effective toolkit to enable improvements to be made to bus services in their
areas. The Bill will make it easier for Mayoral Combined Authorities to introduce
bus franchising and also provide a better framework for enabling Local Transport
Authorities and Operators to reach an Enhanced Partnership agreement with bus
operators.

It is important that the vision and strategy is approved and adopted, before any
decisions are taken regarding how the strategy is delivered. The Business Case
assessing how the strategy is best delivered will therefore be brought for
consideration and approval once:

o The Bus Plan strategy document has been adopted by WYCA,;
o The specification of the Buses Bill is known; and

o There is clarity regarding whether there will be a Devolution Deal for this

region which includes the ability to access the Buses Bill

At present and subject to the points above being resolved, it is anticipated that the
Business Case considering the options, risks and opportunities will be completed
by early 2017.

Short Term Measures

In parallel to the development of the Bus Plan, WYCA is keen to see a
programme of measures which can be delivered quickly to improve the buses
within the context of the Bus Plan vision and principles. The short term measures
being considered should:

o Help contribute to delivery of longer term Bus Strategy;

Page 14



3.28

3.29

4.1

4.1.1

41.2

4.2

421

422

o Be deliverable before 2018;

o Provide tangible benefits to the customer;

° Be deliverable within the current legislative framework;

o Minimise any additional governance requirements; and

o Not constrain any party in terms of longer term Strategy.

A series of meetings have been held between Bus Operators, coordinated
through the Association of Bus Operators in West Yorkshire (ABOWY) and
WYCA. Through these meetings ABOWY have proposed a number of short term

measures in the following areas:

o Young People

o Information
e Air Quality
o Ticketing

o Punctuality

WY CA officers are working with ABOWY on delivering the measures set out
above in parallel to the development of the Bus Strategy.

Corporate Considerations
Consultation and Engagement

WYCA have taken a phased approach to the development of the Bus strategy
with both public and stakeholder consultation taking place as stated in this report.

Highways and Transportation schemes are subject to the following four stage
consultation process;
e Stage 1 — Internal Scheme Development Consultation List (Technical).
e Stage 2 — External Scheme Development Consultation List (Key
Stakeholders).
e Stage 3 — Public Engagement Consultation List.
e Stage 4 — Review Feedback, Report Back Findings & Recommendations.

Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration

WY CA will be responsible for ensuring compliance with Equality and Diversity
requirements of the Bus Strategy.

Equality and diversity will be a consideration throughout the Scrutiny Inquiry and

due regard will be given to equality through the use of evidence, written and
verbal, outcomes from consultation and engagement activities. Where a potential

Page 15



impact has been identified this will be reflected in the final inquiry report, post
inquiry.

4.3 Council policies and Best Council Plan

4.3.1  This inquiry will support objectives as defined in The Vision for Leeds 2011 —
2030and the Best Council Plan 2015-20

4.4 Resources and value for money

441  This report has no specific resource and value for money implications
4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

4.5.1  This report has no specific legal or access to information implications
4.6 Risk Management

4.6.1 This report has no risk management implications. Processes for risk and project
management form part of the various projects related to the bus strategy being
progressed by Leeds City Council and WYCA.

5 Conclusions

5.1 This report has presented an overview of the Bus Plan document as well as the
proposed approach to the forthcoming public and stakeholder consultation.

6 Recommendations
6.1 Members are requested to note and comment on this report.
7 Background documents'’

Appendix 1 — KPMG Executive Summary

" The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’'s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.

Page 16



B B8B8B88 336 8

i

$92/A8S 8NQ jB20| UC 58101j0d JueLlwaaoB 1o 3ouenyu| g
8Jans| ABjod JUSUIIZADD £°'G

Selnqule BDIMRS SNg Z'G

uopanponu|  |'g

JoqJRL $1d| 9Y3 JOAQ BIUSNYU| JUSWILIGACE) &

UO|SSNOS|P pue ABLULLNG §'p

suogoeuedill Jay/eul JO ue(BAlld Y
suonoapadin laey £

$OAJ108iq0 pUB SpasU JSP|OYBNEIS Z'¥

uogonponyy |y

uopUeAIeIu| JusLIBAOD 104 sjeuoRy b

uojSSNOSIP PUB AJBLULUNG  §'E
saneedsiad JopoyeNels gg
puewsp ul uoileues jeaydeifosn g
spuen 1)y £'8

INIonNs Je)JewW W8Ny 'S
punoiByoeg |'E

MBIAIGAO 333IBI £

yoeouddy g'g

seaosiqo |z

Uodeasiyl g

swybnoyl Uy £

19BL ALY Uk sUBAISI O} $$82 oyl Buidojeseq g'|
IR SN [0 BU) JSA0 SUSNPU] JUSWILISASS §'|
18}JBLU U1 Ul uoRuBARul tueunuaaos Joj ajeuoney |
SPURL) JeRew sNq |BDOT £

meuey 7')

uepanpou| ||

Agwiwns eAlndexy

Rneieqy

S3UBIU0Y)

Apthijduind YEnoug Bupmna

WX

Page 17



"Jodey siy} Ul pASSNDSIP SJNBW B U }52)93u) Ue SABY JU4BIw oym uoiesiusBlio 1o uosiad
Jeu1o Aue 4o Jysueq eu) 10} pasedsid useq 10U SBY LODSY SIYL ‘BUCIE JUAYY Sy} 4O JYEUB] BYL Joj
lodey s)Lp paiedsid eAEY 8a IS ‘aA0qE JuaLLB]e]s [21ausb eyl G IOy pue “Jejnoied u)

"WIBID 8yl uByy eyl Aled Aus oy podey

S1y} 4o Joedse. uj AL|Ige)| AuB 198008 JOU |Ia pue A}|IQISUCDS ) AUB BLINSSE JOU 80P J'T] DN

'AB| AQ pajiiwied Jualxa 1S3y 8yl 01 Y81 uAO S) 18 S S80p () 30 Med Aus Joj Loday iy} uo AjsJ 0)
S9E00UI PUB BSIMIBH10 10 SWSYIS UOEDNGN 51U Bul YBNOW ‘2002 1y {PueMoas) uonewou|
#0 Wopesl] BUE Q00T 30 UCHELIOM| JO wopesl] ey) Japun) ADoo B 1o Lodey gy} 9] ss9098
SUIBIGC 1843 Jue)[D Sy} LBy Jey1o Aled Auy "Jxejuco Aug ui 10 asodind Aue 1oy Jus|D B} UBY) JBLIO)
477 DINGY 1suiebe s1yBu ainboe o) Bujysiw Ajied Aue A uo psija) 8q 6} 3|qexns Jou s| JLodaey sy

*BUOIE JUBNTy 3] JO 1yeusq ey} 4o} Jodal s|y) pesedasd

9ABY BAA LOdaY EIY) pBe. JUBiL 513410 JBY) BIBME US3Y BABY ABl e yBNOY) usAe “JuB|D ayl
w0y JJede SUCALE JO SSOUBISLUNDLID JO SPIJU ‘SISEIEIU| BYE JUNO3JE CJU| UBYE] JOU BARY 3Mm Laday
s Buuedssd u) “Juey) eyl 1daoxs sucus o) Jyeuaq 4o aq 0] peubisep usaq Jou SBY Lodey Sy

"JOBAUGCD S83IAISS Y] U) INO 188 SEDUBISLUNDIID Peliwi| 8U} uj Leyl JB0
30/ JNO JO S2INGI 34} U] PEUIBIGO LUORBWLIOLU) AUR O ADRINIDE JO AJ[IGE]S) B} POYLSA 10U BABY BAA

'8olape [e6a| 10 uonén|ea e SE1NASUCD Lodsl Iy Ut BuiLoy

. (S10Z/E0/Z 1 PeIEp 181197 PUBMY JBILUCY 8U} PUE) 19BJUO] SBIIAES BY] 1M
uopaunfuos ul Pass 8q PINOYS Put {,198U07 SSIAISS, BYI) §LOZ/ZL/EZ PAIEp LIWRILD oy} Hodsues|
1o} waliedaq By} 0} passsJpPE [BSadold NG Ul N0 135 Siseq eL) uo paiedasd uesq sey HoH9) SiyL

aonou Jyuepoduiy

ooL

68
512

suonsenb Jepjoyeyers z xipusddy

SMBIAIBIU) Jepjoyaes | xipusddy

uQISSNIsIp pue Alewwng g9

2sed ssausng Lodsuel| 1o} Juaudietdag g

efveya AiolejnBal o) 8sBo B Bulysyqelsy g9

RUAID ISeIeUl D)IgNd SO0 T8

uonanpoaul L'

je)Jew 8y} U] eusAlojul o) 853 ey} Bujdoeasg g
UOISSNISIP pue AIBWIWING O'G

seApdadsiad JSp|oyYeNaIS '

Page 18



sab-Jeem-pus-auAr-pesodaid
-ay1-Uo-pode:-pieng-gab-ALUBY X Ajjenbsual nusanby Aol s sday 5LOZ JeguesoN "SDD
8o PUE BUAL Pesadnd el uo wodal piEng (SHD) ewsyas PeRuaD AYIEND (g|0Z) UIKKE 18RI 40} SIBUOISSIILTD B ¢

‘yodal §(Y} JO £ UCHDSS Ul pejueseld a8 SPUd] 1838w JO SiEIR

[eueppy ‘|18 ss8| Buiop ale say30 1S)iym (|9 Ajsaliejes Buiop Bl S]EYJELY [2D0) SWOS “1e3.BW

841 O} |BUIINAS BB LIIYAs 513YJ0 puB 8717 AQ PEDUSN|UI 555110 ‘81018130 A PB||0AUOS BI8 YdyMm JO
8LLIDS 's10)2ky 6|dI)NW AY paouenyu) Bineq Addns pus puewsep Yl xo|dwioo S| 36w SNQ [200] BY |

spusei} }ej)Jew snq |B20] €1

"IIig 8yl Jo Jusuca B} Buido|eAsp $| WawUIeA0R Byl *Buplum Jo Bl ey} 1y Buisouely
SNg eanposu) o} uondo ey Bujpnioul Allenuejod ‘Se0iMaS SN |BI0) @2USNUL O) SBRLIOYLNS (BIC|
1 s18mod [Buonippe epiacud 0) paloedxe S| §10Z Yoseds 5,ueenD SI| U] POSUNDUUS [Ig Sesng oy

"SBOWUBS SNQ 3siyauely O] ssemod uenb eq 0] AQUNOD BY) Ul AUOYINE [BINJ 361 Y} BLLODE] ||2UNGY)
B 335 ||Im y2Jym S|ESOCO.D SBPN|IU| ([BMUIOD) J0) [BE(] UDJINIOA(Q] BY] PUB }8Y.JEW SNY [890| 51 I8AQ
Siamad 1a188.5 pasayo uaeq sey ‘B|duiexs Joy JelseUIuepy J2)eau s ‘BpusBe LOgN|cASp BU} Joj BNSS)
Aey B S| LodsueY INg ‘B8IR DB SSOIOB JBJ)|P SARUOYINE [890| &) PAJULLB SwWs|uByosw Buipuny pus
Siamod 8y ‘sea.e |BIO| J1BY) Ul Y1mOo.B Diwoueoa poddns of Bupuny pus siemod mau 104 35B2 8]
S§BW 01 §[IIUNGY [B30| PEMT||B YI[YM JUBLIPUSLLY S8JH7 2J07) Byl PEINPOAU] | | 0 19 WS||Ba0T 8y)

AueBuz ) ueweAch [B20] 0 uonNoAB(

gL 3y Jo Aljjiqeded pue walsAs BsIYoUBY Ay} 4o ubisep ‘UORIAdWC JO S[8AS)

Jusuayur ey} SB Yans SI0108) AQ PRIUBNIU| BG PINCI YIJYM ‘esiyduel) ay) 40y Buipplq o sepunuoddo
Pue s8AiULY Ay; vodn spuadap wIN] Ul YaIYm “ISIYIUBL B UM O SI0)BJ300 uesmjeq UORESUWES Jo
A31SUBUl By} UD pUBHSR PINGA S163IBW |B30] Ul UORBCLLOD 4O 08| B Waly Buisye luswylep Jawnsuos
8y} ssaJppE PN Bu|Syaue.) IpiAs BBIB YDIYM O} JUB]XE ey} Jey] pApnouce §| *AJus 0) SJalueg

0} pe|a SwWejgoud Jejwis Lol JayNs 0} AjBd)| SEA PUB UONISCWES Lo-peay JaBuons Yim 1838w

€ 0} Jolisju| 8q 0= pinoa ) 'SSSBI SWOS U| S))8usy pnoud pinoD (9pOW SIUY1 IS|ILAL JBY) PaUWIa)ep
PUR S}83IBW [BDO] U) WI)SAS peseq BSIUDURIY B JO UDIONPOIIY| 34} JO S1LSW B} PEISPISUOD 77 ay)

"SSANUBIU| JBPIM
Pue (DOSA) el siojeled() BIAISS SNE BY) J0 JuswAed ‘sdiysieulled ‘Juswanious

uoRnaduwIcD aAlI8Ys ‘SeDIAIES PALOUUNS ‘SUDHES SNG O} SS800E “INOKRYSE JOJEIato ‘Bupeyan

©] UONe(&s u| J2340 S|4} 0] SUOJIBPUALILLCDE. |B1aA85 SPEL PUB 1@3JBLW 8] Ul uolnedwad Buiacsdu
Pue Aus o) sielueq Bumowss yBnosyl pejpews. 8q 15eq PN0D JUBWISR S|4 18} PEPNPUDY D 8Y1

‘Jejrew ayy

Ul swe|qoud say10 pus INdIN0 PSanpe. JO JNSal B $€ $3449usq DJLUDUGDA JBPIM PUB [BID0S JO $50| Iy}
BPN|3Ul 10U PIP £1803 852y "JBBA Jad Lo||IW GEEF O Ual||iw g| |3 jo eBuss ey} u1 sem uongedwad uo
£)03y4% S5JAADB 4O JNS8J B SB S18ABAXE] PUR SIALUNSUCS ) JUAWLIBP [B10) BU) 1By PEIBLINES 07 ay]

"suORalspiSu0Y Agjjod Jepim apnjaul AjlBalyoads Jou pip 3 pue uojiedwoea

185/8L0 UQ SBAM SNDOY SH *BAISUB)KE SBM LOJIRENSEAU] 5,00 BUL IS|IUAM "UOIIEIRCC PUe N1onns

SI LLI0Y JUBLLLESR JAWNSUQD 0y |Bu)cd &) PUE 1838w $Ng 2yl U] UDRREdWOD JO SEeUBALIaYE
81} paJapisuca UOREBISIAU| 18XI8[N DT SY1 "UOPUOT JO BPISING JIYJEW SNQ [B30] BY) JO AMBIAB) B
¥QoUspUn (37} UOISSIWLIOD uoRiRatwo) ey 0|0z w Buipel] ae] Jo sa 0 2yl Ag [eueyed Bumood

uonefsaAUl 18) /8L UOIBSILILLOY Loypadwon

‘sayaeodde Guisiyoueyy pue diysieuped
yieg Gunenigas pue Gujdoiaaap s) AJLICLINY PELIGUIOY SJIYS3I0A 1SEAA B4 "UCIIB]LD 158) JSaIl|
a)iqnd eyt 4o |je 188U Jou PIP SWayas eyl 1yl BUIPNaUOD G| 0Z JAOWSAON E UC SLauds pasodosd

8y1 Jo uojudo s paysyqnd pJgog DD B "PIBCH SWAEYIS SISRIUGY ANBND B AQ pessesss

“Hodeay syl L) AgesBusyzueiu Bisiyouesy pue sBLUeSS BISEQULT Ayjen() O1 J8jE) 8% 'BIUBILIBALIOD Joo BUjS|yoURY

6NQ §8 o4 paLIeIsI FBLURALIOS 6J€ SBLUAYDS S0RNUCT ANIBNT) 164} SUBBLL SEIAISS 18800 0} s)y0) BASNTNE Joj usiiedwe? ,
"AlDLNY PAUIGUUCT EUIYSHIOA 188/ B4} PLE {QIUET) PUE SNXGN "3ld BINENIOA YINDS |SAENASTIB) BISELOUEN

Jeqeaug Joj podsuel ] ) saagnaax] Ledsur) JeBuessed eAl Yl 8pNou) sese ueyed! ITRTTY:T-T) d |Bae]

pue snxep Aq umao._m_:mu 218 JESAK PUE BUA] JO) SOD B J0j SEscdoly 'ucnEiedo U sawayag
§19B4U07 AJJEND ou AuB.LND 818 eJBL) ‘pejdope AjSpm AlBANE|IS) UBSg Sey YosoiddE 41 S4) ISIIWAR

‘Juawajdw| o) J8ISES WaY) 238 0} ODZ 19V Jodsuel | (B30T SU) JBPUN PIPUSLUE

elem SO0 Pue S40 Jo) suoisinaid aapepsiBe) ey ', AUOYINE 3y AQ pequose.d SpIepuels ay) Bupesw
0] 10elgns 's8]ej8s JIRIUOD BY LDIYA O} BAIE BU) UI SEDIAIBS AiddnS o) syby sasn|oxe sioleiado
sjuesB pue papiacid Bq PINOYS S0AISS [BIO] JBUM SBUILLIBIEP Y1 84 §HT B J2PUN ‘(SpiepuB)s
Bujule)) Jaaup Jo ‘sesng meu B-3) weyj Buisn uaym piepuE]s Bjnalled 8 Jo 8015 apold

0} 8xRl2PuUn S5I1)1984 BSOL] 55N O] YSIA OUM S10}RI3H0 pue {sBue| sng Jo sdols sng '6'e) 58IN0J

snq Buo|s SUopea0| Jyoads 1a ser)|ioe) Par0ILLU) Ul 81SEAU| i 24) $4D B Japun (SO0} Sawayag
s10BQU0D ANBND) PUB [SJD) SAwaLoS diysieulied AJBnD S3BU O1 (Sy17) SANOVINE potsues

1820 404 uanesiBe) pepno.d QO0Z 10V Hodsues | Sy} [jun peBuRYDUN PSLIBLIE) |BPOLU JEYJBLL 8l |

‘sejuedwon ipBue] S, WIE eleledas ¢} suonesade snq |ediojunw Jaysuel] o] SenLoyNe
|B30| paunbal pue dnoup) $NE YSINIeIS pue Auedwoy SNY [BUOHEN aL) 4O LOGesneaud ayl 1o pepuad
0s|e }| ‘S10jesed0 ugaMIeq UONNedLLOd PECJ-UD PEAG)E PUB BujSUST)| B3IAIBS PBOS PAUSHOGR 0y AUl
oy Jodsues | GEEL 9y} 18pun pasneald pue pajenGa,-ap 319m UOPUDT JO 8pISIN0 S8IIASS SNQ (B30T

ugpesiieald pue uoiienBareg
ooy  Z'L

"SUONBPUBLUWIDIA) ADljod B JO senss| Acijod Lodsuel) Jepim
J8PISUOT "SUDHUAAIAIL 13X IBL BAJBLIAYE O |BSIBICHE UR BYELEPUN J0U SJ0p A||BDly0ads Y1om JND

“Alaanoedsse) {Sy]) S31)OYINY (B0 PUE {53 ] d} S9ARNEXT
uodsuey| 1aBuasseg ol J8ja) Im SBIIE uBjRGOIIBL JO BRISIND SY1T LUOY SESIE Ue)|0doNew u) Sy
Auap Ajeleiedas 0} AUBSsalsU Bl 3 BIBYAA $BIT (830 U] LODSUBI) JO} 9|qISUDHEE] BJB YDILM SBIPGE
JuawiuleaoB |B90| C} 1384 O} [y ) ALLoWnY LodsuBly (307 uua) Uyl 85N em Uodal siy) InoyBnosy

'58AlRIUBSEIdd) JaBusssed pue suopes|uebio apes)
'BOPUDT U Si01818d0 SN

'sJozesedo Snq Juepuadapu |ewsg

‘$dnouf Bupesedo sng ebuen

*SBSJE UBJIj0dDABLL JO IMSING SERLOYINE Hodsuer) |BaoT]
* SE2ue vEedonew u) sepuoLInNe Jodsue) (B30

:3dnouB BuImo||0) ey woy (3 BY1 AQ PEI0S|3S SIOPIOYBHEIS ULIM SMB|AISII PIJNIONIS SZ

Jo ssies B Aq pelioddns ‘uapBuuoUl 8|qE|eAR AIGnd UC peseq ()] "SAICIIND 183IBL BIUANL| UBD
usLuuIeAol 2yl yojym 0} JUBIXE S1) PuB seA0BIGE JBPIoYSYEIS Buimelael ‘spuel) 1eyiew BuisAjeue
Aqg s1e3J8LW snd jedo| Buioej semunuoddo pue sebus||eyd By} S13PISUOD YIOM IND ‘puUe 1By} O]

'uopuoT Jo epISInG pugiBug u) JexIewW sNg |ADO|
ayl ojul yBisw apined ©) uoiewlou| 1ay)eB o) gy pebebua (14q) Lodsuss) oy Jueliedaq syl

uononponul 'L

Atewiwins aapnoaxg |

Page 19



"ARD|6Q JaYMNY PAsSSNISIP &) uonoeuedil) JayiBLw Jo adA) yoeg
'siojeszdo snq e1eaud Ag Any pe.njded Jou 8. ng
18ARY] SN 4O Janpoud-Aq B SB AJ9I20S O] JNDID JBL) 5§31}9U8q |EJUBLLLOJIALS PUB [BIDO0S ‘DILLOOIT
"19)LBL 8y} 12)US 0] SIUBJIUG ABU JOJ AJj|Ige JO UORNedwon JO YaeT
“JeBeuBWw/ABpIACIY 8INONIISAIY| Sy} PUB SJ0JBIBT0 USSMIB] SBAIUSY| pauBlesIy
“Bunayiew ol pue LoReBa3u) 1930 'UoHBUIPIOOD BoKUES 0 Bl S8ILIOLDIE YJOMISN
:Bupnjoul ‘uanoepBL @R JO SBIN0S |BIUSIOd NG PAIYIUSP] SABY S 5163 JEW SNQ B30

PajenBal-ep Jog - suonoepedull 192w, JO SOIN|B) 1838, SB 0] J6J8l SJSILLCUCOS JRy] SUOSRB) Jo
£181J8A B 10} BBDIN0SA JO UONEDO||E JUSIDYLS UB ISABP JOU OfF $193.BLU BIBYM SUOISEISO Bg ABLL 8ialj]

suoyosLedL

"SJ3P|0Y ) B]S JUBIBLIP JO SaAlzalgo

3u3 ueeaeq depsao poch B S| 813y) SBRIE 1S0W U) JBY) 51 aABMOY ‘S|SAIBUE S|4} JO Bujpuy Asy
ay| saBueys Aoignba) Jo Sys1 PUB E1S00 By} PISTXG 18Y] S)I§BURG HLOUODe BpIAcId O} pajladxs
5| §3A138IG0 ADI|Dd JO JUSWEAS|YDR B BIaLM SBSJB Ul A||BI080S3 JayJEW BNY BU) U UCUBAIAI]
1uewulaaof Jayny 0§ 8se0 ay3 Loddns pinoa seaoslqo JepjoyeyElE u) SjuswuB)esIW |BRUSIO]

"56818) J8A0 AJulEpea puB ABuOW JO} 3n|ea Jepeq Bumalyoe epnjaul Aewy ‘ssaBusssed o4 ‘einypustxs
anueaal pue |B1I0eI WY ABUOLU 10} 2njea Bujas)yoe SB [[Ba SB ‘SJLUSUSACIOW| [EJUBLUIUDIALS

PUE |B[00s "Dwiougae Jepiv *sanicelqo Asyod (eieds pue podsuen Japim BulBAjep apnau

Aay) senlioyIne (B30 J04 "Wapealy [eRrewwos Bujaey pue S10)SsAU| 01 uinje) 8 Buipiacud alBys
jeyj1ew Bupjer apnjau) Asyl 's10)81800 104 "SIPIOUSHE)S BIOY) JO UIBDUDD BU) A/BAISN|IXS 618 Aeuyy 184)
Ass 0] Jou §1 eyl yBnoyys ‘sdnou Jop|oysyels oy0ads Jo uIBDUCo au) AjuBwud 818 seAlas[go FETI 5]

“RJNJDNUSE. Ul JuaLWIEEAUl pue sdiysuaneles Bupiom pooB Buueiuiaw Yus [epow Suaeyos
188.03u| UR SABY S.0)EIEdC PUB Sy LT "AYIORIS }J0MISU PUB ‘SBPOLI PUE SI0JEIBd0 LSemIat uoie |
82aJSs "All|IqIsS8a3. 4O s[aas| yBly Bijsep sy1] pue sieBuesse, ‘uopeAcuLl puB AJjenb eaiues yBiy
‘IouBLUopad yiomlau peacidw ‘amesd 168U LuEl-Buc| Juem e sieBuassed pue siojesedo ‘sy)n

wm>_«mu_n_c Iaployag

“Jjodal siy} J0 { LORISS U peyueseld S| 193JBW BY] Ul UOUAAISIY] JUSWUISADE
10} B|BUDEI Sy} UC UOIESNASIP JOYLINY "SuoRoaadw) 188w (Bruelod pus SeANDBIGO Jep|DYEYEIS
10 UCHEISPISUOD S3AI0AU] 1838W @y} U) uoguealalul Jusluwaacl Loddns oy ajeuoge. ey; Buidojaasg

39)4ewr ey} U] UojjueAIelul JuswuIeAOR 10} afeuoney 'L

‘slaxJeuw (8og) Jiey) Bujoey sefius)|eya ey} 3981391 0} papue) Se|LOYINE |BO0| J1HIBTS 0} SANSS|

9531 Jo Yoes Jo saueodw BlY) ‘UORISULIOS PUB UCNBUIPIOOD UBBAMIAT SPEL 3Q 0L 50-BPEI] SI6M
alay) J2y; PEIOU 0818 AUBW JBABMOL SUORRNYS SWos U s18Buassed 1o} E)1jeuan aPIA0L PINOa SEPOLW
Pue siceiedo uaaamieq seolaes pue Suneson 1o uojeuIPIo0T se1eelb 18y pas.Ba siepoYBYELS

‘uoiie|nBa. JEw JeAc AJUIELISDUN DU SBDIAUES SNY [800] UO BINJIPUBHXE JUSWUISAOE |0 58A3)|
Bujuep JaAC SUIBDUOY PISTRMXE CS|B ASY L "SINIONISEL Ul LOUSUE)) U) JUSWISBAL| PUB SSDIAIE8
Aauenbeyy Jjayfiy ‘voneuuojul 1abuassed peacidw| ‘Bupenon pejeiBejul 'SIoMEU puglsiepun

0} Asea *Ayjenyaund paaciduy Buipnjoy| aBzucsled eseaicu) 0F senuoud pelyUep| SJAPI0YN NS

‘siebuessed oy SeLUODING LD uoRBNBa Jelealb JO
s128dW) |eusled ay) pue ‘souewioed aacidwi O} Sansesw Asiod Buisxe Jo [euejad sy} Jayiew
UB.N3 B} JO edUBLLIO e BY) UD SMBIA JUSISYHID APeY.BwW PI|lUSP| SIBP|DYSXNE]S YIM SMBIAISIL|

SPUJ] JJBW UD SMBIA JAPIOYBYELS

"afiga|w somes payoddns v suojonpal Jeyuny o} Buipes| Ajeuelod s39jAs

8N |30 U0 ANYpUsdxe JWBLWUIBA0E uo Binsse)d [euo)IPPe saeid o AjBy| 8J8 610z Malrey Buipusdg
2y} 4o Jed se s1aBpnq AJOYINE |Ba0) O] SUORINP3) pAlBdPIUY ‘Saw)) Buneledo 8100 JO BPISING
Bugjearl] 8501 pUB Sea.e pajeindod Ajasuep 83| U) 950U} Uo 108dw) 3Bk Alsieuoipodoidsip B pey
ARy SUQIIONPBU B21A18S 18U s18ebbne aauapine |ropeaus ‘efsuciled u| uononpe. Buo)odosd & t)
P8| aABY ©} Jeedds 10U SBCP S| SISIYSA U] UCJIONPEI SU] IE|IYAA 'SBBIE LIE)||0d0.48W-UDU U % 1Z Pue
$ea.e uey|odoulews u| 95ZZ PUnoJe Aq ||8) aBea)w aopues pepoddns ¢80 PUB OL/600Z [IEETIET
0084 10 Wioy 3y} ui s101e18d0 ©) PapIA0.d ARISONS JO [BAS| Sy} OF UOHONPE) 8 PUB Sad|Aes papoddns
Joj Bujpuny 1 UORANPE. B §0 YN$J € Se AjSBJB| UBAUP ‘Sesse UBN|OdDIIBLL-LOU PuR UEY|cdoIEW IO
Uy SBJILU 8[2Iy3A (E10) U LONSNPAI Sy} £ $188A JUED8) U) pual) JaxJew Juslioduwl jsow au) Algenbay

S8jjW 8o1Aeg

'SB6JE UBY[0L0/3Ww-uou pus uejjodogaw Ljog

650108 §3]8J JB|WIS 18 PESEa,IU| SABY SIE0)) "SEAIE UBY0COI8L-UOU O} 8AE|2) Seaue ueljjodonew
uj Jemo| eue Aswinof JeBuessed Jad $1500 Bupesedo 1ey) uesw sio)oe) peo| 6BRIaAR JauBly

ng Jeybsy 8Je Ipw apjyea 1ed 51500 Sunelsd( “SUOHEINGA. |BIUSWUCIALS PUE S1S0 uoISUad Guisy
'puUBWep JNCgE| peseslaul yim padnoo sieaup 4o efieuoys e Aq peusjdxs 8q Aew uopeyu) eBeam

— |04uod S101816d0 SPISINO USSQ BABY ABLU 3SRV $IY) JO YDNW 'GO/P00Z BouIs Asuinol eBusssed
lad 888810U 97| Pue 3|1 B[2)YBA Jed 51500 Bujjesade U) esBEIIY) %ZZ B U| Bujnse. sisah Jusoal
1840 Aj[eUBISQNS Uasll 8ARY Y104 PUB 51SCO [8N) PUB JNOge| Aq ueaup Ajafilel 2Je s1so0 Bupeiadg

s1s00 Buneliedy

. 'UDRBJUI UBL] S)BJ J3)SE) B 1B PESESIOU] OS[E
BABY 2|y S1S00 BUNBIBAD Ul SPUBJ) MO|I0} 0] Puel SE.IB) JBY] JOASMOY 810U O} JUElCHL S| )| SEaIE
uspedel]aw-usu Ul UBY) B6.E UB)otosSw Ul 818 181SEy Ajjueoyiubis B J8 UBSH 8ABY PUB GOQZ BOUIS
uonajjul [eieus uey) s1es Jeybiy e 18 ussy sasy uopuoT 4o apiEING puejBul Ul seues 1oy saugy SNy

8818} sNg

"S371A35 SN {8a0| 4o Aljenb ayy uo yBisul

[BuonIppE apiacid pina sng Ayl Bujyoleo wo.y s19sn-uou Jelsp 1Y) £10308) 3u) BulAjiuep| 'sng AQ
1&nkJ} 0} 10U S5O0 Oy BS0Y] 8PNl 10U Seop $Bule uooassI1es BUILLIBIAP O] PaSn SlUEpUCdEs.
10 e|dwes 3y 1ey) pelou asie sear }| "Alljenb eaiues YB)ly uey) Jay)el suojjelaedys 1ebusssed

M0 108484 ABrusiod s[aag| uoRdesnes JoBuessed ybiy Jey) smelelll Jsploysy s au) Buunp
PO5|E] SUIBIUGD SWOS JBABMOL] 813m 334 1 'S804 IN0J 158| S Jen 948 01 %58 Wow Busesow
$[aA8] uonaeysies Jebuassed |[BJBAD UM ‘BUIACKIW] SJ8 S8I0DS LOJIBISIIES J8y) SuBls Os{e a8
8Jay| "seeJR AJOuINE |200| S50108 PUB SOLIOW AsY 550108 YBIY 248 uo)oeyses JeBuessed Jo 5jaae

uoyaeysies jafiuassed

‘S8DIAIFS SNQ [BI0] U BIN}PUBTXS PUB JUBLL}SEAU) J0}29s 9)jgnd vl eBueyo deys B pus

PaIsyo edlAIBs JO Aljenb sy u) aBueyd da)s e Aq pad|ey sea uopuaT u) pusLuep JeBuessed u) Mo
84 1aa3moy Jes|2 s| Bujyl suQ "esuBwIoped Ja3IBLL SANE|S. UG JSPOL, J8NIEW By} JO SIUBNJL B}
UO UQISRIDUQD LU} B AMBIP O} 3IN0YYIP 840481817 S| }| ‘PUBLLEP 8oueN|ju| JByY) SI10)J8) 34} Ul SEOUBIBLIP
93 9.e oS "paxJelu aJe pug|Bug Ul SEAIR JAYO PUB UOPUOT UBSANAY PUBIGE SN U SE2USLBLIP 1S(IYAA
'SQ00Z-21e| Y3 |3un Ajjpeels Buissaiou| J0jeq 8066 L-PILU 3Y) PUE SOBBL-PIW BY) UBAMIAY JUBJSUCD
A1BANE|B PBUIBLLAI PUBLISY BIBLA UOPUDT U| SPUSJ] Yim SISBUCY Puewsp vl pusl) s1eBeibbe siy)|

*810) B3¢0 SNY (BI0| J0 80UBLLIOKT BU) SB |[BA SB ‘Ainpuatxe Juewuieaol pue AJjod podsuss
Jopia "Hodsue) 40 SSPOU BAQBUIBYE JO SSIUSALOEIE BAQB(8) 3y} ‘85N puE| *510128) JjydeiBowsp
-0[208 U sasusselip Gulloe|j8. S)a3Jrw SNG |E90| SS0408 UDJIELBA S|RIBRISUOD Lliv Jaq|E J|4Els
AiBnije|a1 peulews) sey puswwsp JoBuessed ||B1asd uay) sows 'sOOPZ-PIL 8yl O} uoienBelep Jo ey
8YJ LWOJ} ASNONUILGS JSOLU(R ||8) UOPUDT 4O SPISINO puB|Bu3 w1 £821uas SN s0f pueLuep Jebuessey

pueLwap JeBusssag

Page 20



0} JuepodLul 1 8601AIES SNQ [BI0] JO S1080SE BEALJL 1aAD BouaN|U| Juawuanol aiayps “Aod
Hodsuen Jepim 01U 3ioA1eu SN Byl 4o uoneiBelul jeiea0 eyl puB ‘Bupeyew pus Guipuesig *yJ0MmIeu
BU} JO AL|iqe)s ayy ‘Buped)) pelesBalu *(S1aBuassed AJBUDISSEONCT-UCU JOJ) 5816} JO BINIONAS

pue [9a8] 8y} :Buipniour ‘aauanjju) 108JIp 81| SABY Y17 YDIYM JBAD SBI)AES SNA [BIO| JO S)oadse
[BIBABS QI BIBY] ‘18ASMOH '18)JBLU SNQ SUY) JO 5105058 AUBLU UD BDUBN|JL BABL UBD 8] 1BY]

uESLY “ (4] By} Ag (8AB| |BUOHBU B 18 pe|jdde Sainseaw Asiod ay} O} UORIPPE V| ‘|8AR] AIBUOISSEOUCD
Aeuoyasos|p Jayo pue sesnsesw Ajloud Sng u) 1aAu| ‘ss0jAas papoddns spiaoid o]

‘580KUSSE JO)BIBHD SNY |BdIDILNp

“uswebeuaw puswsp AemybiH

"1usweBaLAL DiLRI} PUE JUSWISIAU| 2JNongseyu) Bujuued
‘Buipuny jeydes peysbiay

*|9ABI} AJBUOISS3IU0D AIBLONBIISI]

"S89IMRS paloddng

:epnjou Ajjeoo| pelidde siaas| Astod

-gouepinB sonoeid 3sag

"MB] LoBdwo]

-uopeinBas Ayenb pue Buisuaor
“|BABJ) AIEUOISSEIUOD AIDINIBIS @&

9088 Bujpnjauy) Apisans pue saxe)

:8pnjoul Ajeuoiieu peidde s1aAae) Aaljog

"LodaJ §|Y] JO § UO[DBS Ul puUnoy 8q LB 8LLO3JN0

J9ned SUBN|Ul UED JuBLIUIeA0E eyl yoium u| sAem By} Uo S|IE1SP JayLnd 'saAlaelqo ADijod Jepim
I8y} 8ABIUDE pUB SUOiIBadw JayJew JSueBe ajeBiw o} 'se01AIeE SN |BD0) J0 puBLUBep pue Addns
8] aduan|ju| 0} pasn 8g UBD Lalysm s1eAs| Adljod jo eBUBI B BABY S| ‘[@pow paienBasep ayl Jepun

Ppow peeniesrac

Jajlelwl snq |ed0| 2y} 1aA0 euanjjul JUuewWuIeA0r) Sl

‘Buplayap pue sao1as JO uoilei5s)ul pUB uoIBUIPIODS 18))8q O} Pes| pinod

uaijeduios 3o 3og & idwexs Jo) ‘suc|1oelp esoddo u) yJom ABLI 58U 18 PUB BAISN[OXS AJlENINW
10U BJB SUOloajjadw] 8y) Jey) 108} ay) AY P)ed)dwod S| suoasyedi] 1838 JO JUBLISSASSE 8Ly
891108.d u| "uUOHoe BT JSNIBW B JO aAREDIPUI Bg JYBILL LIN] Ul 43Iy 1683BL [BI0] B JO BOLBULIOLSA
3L} YA sanss| Je|nojed sie auayl 18yl [BaAS) JyBiL si0)08) 8SAY]L JO YOBE JO JUBLUESEESE Uy

"Guiuued |eyeds pus podsuas AJBJLUALBIGLLOD Ul JUSWIS3AL) JO |3A3)
ay) puB 'SlHUBY [BIUSLIUCIALG DUR |B]D0S 'I|WIOU0DS Japiw Buneisuab Jo aouelioduwl BAnBal By ]

‘a|qe)Ee)uaD €|
1eJBL 31 YDILA O] JUBIXS BY) PUB ‘LIOdSUEL] O SBPOW JBLC WO UopedLIc) ‘sI0jiado
10 JBQWINU Sy} AQ PEDUSNUI B4 [|IA UINY Ul Y21y SI0je1ado A pay Jomod 1ayJeww Jo [9A3] 8yl
"$3JnSeew Aluoud pue seus| sng Jo Aj|iGE||BAB PuB ‘uoisaBuod O SjaA8| “YI0MiBU

PROJ 2y} o Alent ey Buipnjoul ‘suciiesedo pue INONASEYY] USSMIaG uopeBalu] jo (eas| Byl =
'ad} soqeiado-nuw ‘sbeys
-I}NW e3BLU Q) JuaLLaNbE) PUB 3I0MmI3U 3} JO AJX3|0WOD Byl *SINOABYEG pue Suianed [@AR) |

:uo Buipuedep ‘aaejd o3 aaejd wouy Aea |
|l S18YJBLU |BD0| UC Sjoedill Jiay) PUB SACTR PEYIUAP] SUonosjadul 183JBW 8y Jo sous|eas.d 8y

'aq S5|MIBLAO
Prnosm Aay) uey) Jaan0| $2.e) dody Jojpue Ajdidns pusdxe oy poddns Bunabae, Ag Aouapiye
1838w sAcidul) Ued JusuluIeach ISXe sall|Bwelxs eansod, 1O S)1eued JBPIM BSBLR SIBLUAA

‘yodsuern oygnd oy 83eaud woly

yoyaas B BuiBeinodua AQ sIUaWBACKIL [BUALILCIAUS SPIAQI PUB UDISN[OU [RII0S 10w "S301A9S
J[lUBSSA O] SSEIJ. SpIACJd Ady] ‘SasSauSNY 0] S1awanlsno pue sqol o] ejdoad 108UUDD SBSNY
ISR [2IAWLIOS JUL AG PEUIWIR]OR S5i8A9| BY) eAcqe A|ddns esBBIau) 0] JUBIDIHS A|BHLIOUDIS 5|
18U UEBLL LED YDiysn SlHAURY [RIUSWILDIAUS BUE [B100S 'DWUGUDS3 JBPIM 219/auel usd Seoues sng

S}{BUSY [BUGBLLLIOLALIE DU (21208 "OIUCUOS JEPIA

. "EUIEISNS 10U S|
uopnedwos aisym Jemod Jayiew Bunenbe) Ag Jo asiie 03 uonIedwod 1O} SLUOIPUOD S|BINOAB)
Buipiaoud Aq siseueiu seBusssed 1oajoid uBD UOLUBAIBIU] JUBWIULAACE ‘pPeSU B 8] BIAYL BJBUAR

“MASIA SIY)

Hoddns o) 20UaPIAS Pl 10U PINCT JBABMOY DD 8y L "AJUBIDIE JI0A O] 18dIBLU BY] JO) BAIIUSDU|
UEB BpIACI OB|B [[IA JB|NDIUEd U] SIED LUOLY PUB S8POLU JAW0 LU0} UDIIBAIO? 'AJUBIOLYS Y10Mm

0] J9%BL 9] pue S)01euado 0) 3ausoul ue Buipinoid Aus 19318 JO 1BBIYL 8UN LM B|qE1SBIUDD,
Bujaq se papseBal SEWREWOS S| 1838 BY] ‘90895 A|GA[LB|B) S| U0)1edLWCD PBOJ-UO 1S|IUAA

‘sanaIas palucddns Joj 183JBW 8] U] SBOUS[DIYEU|

O} pES} OS[8 PINOD LOI)}8dLLOD BAJDAHE 4O Y. W 1a3.IBW IARRIULIOD 2O € AG PIISA|IBP 3504}

0] aAfle[a4 s)youd Jojelado JayBly pue uoIBACUU| paonpe) *A)ljenb @ouues peanpel "INdING Jemo| ‘Se1s)
Jaubiy 0) pes| pInod s1abuvssed Joj sio01eiedo uPBMIEq LONIBUWED BIGBUIRISNS "BAJJCALE JO 3DB|

JENIBLL BY) JTHUS O} SJUBUE MBU 10} AIIGE JG LORIPOWLIOD O o8]

‘84011800 PUB |1 8Y) udam]aq SIUAWSIBE WO JC rewIO) Buysdelsa Ag JNIBNASE U
J88AUI O} S8AIIUSIU| JO 1UBLUUGI|BSILU B} ONPeJ UBD utijusAlaju] Juswuisaol ‘pasu B S| Blal) sJBUpA

'SIYBUST SUWBYDS JO UDIIESI|ES) S} apeduy pinod

S891AI88 SNY LI0Y) UOBREALUDD Yoy 1oy (1B JYBI| £8 UDNS) Sewayss PodSuRl, 810 Ut JUSW)SBAU)
YUM Pe]BIOSEE S8AIIUSIU| paubl|esiw Jo SJo1juco ag OS[e ABwW 8.8y | "AJJUNWLUOD 18PIA 8y} pus
siaBuassed O] mojy AjQ1BUMLN M JUSLWESSAL] SY) JO SIJaUSq BU) 18Y) JO PBUEIUIELY Bq ||Iam AljI9e)

8 Buisn sioleiado AG paplanid 82AIBE JO |BAS] BUJ JBY] NS B JOUUEI ASLY BJAUAM BINIONESE.L 8NGO
U] 1S8AU| 0] §BAUBOU| PAJ|LLI| BABY ABW S/} AMBJWIS 'SJ0HI90LUOD JIBY) AQ PBBN 8q LBD JUBLUISEAL
SIU} UBUM HIOMIBU Syl U] 1Saau| AlBI1BIIVN O} SAAIUSIU Pa)i SABY SJ0lBIad0 "atwexa 104

"SANNLIU] Jo JuawubiEs L B 0] pES| UBD WeY) uaemIaq soepEll] oyl sbeuew

0] MOy UD S1USLLeBURLE |BLLLIOJE JO [BWLIOY JO Y2B| PUE SB[IAIIDE PIIE[ALAIY) @581 JO uoljerdes

9] "San9SwWaY) S921A19S SN ay) Buileledo Joj s|qisucdsel Ble OUm B50Y] PUB ‘8ouBLLIOLG0
jiomieu pecs BuiBeuew pue eunjonnses)u; Ledsues Buueuiew pue Buipiaouid 1o ejqisuodsel ale
oym 3soy) uaamlag Bupom diysieuled seainbas Ajjeseuel yiomieu sng Ayjenb yBiy e Jo Aeajep sy

SeARUBIUL PIUBHBSYN

‘eJojesedo Jueleyip Aq peplacsd Sealaes UBemlaq Asse|wess Je)suel) siefusssed diay o] Buneyon
pue seug} ubije pus SeoiASE aEUIPIOCD OF A9y UBD UORUSAIAJU JUSLLILISAOD ‘DISu B Si 3JoUL AISYMA

"AVET ualipadwas Jo yaes.q ul eq Ajjeriusiod pinoa § peBeuew Ajnjeles si )l ssejun pue xeydwoo

st sJuswebuee Gueyo) pue sele) 'se|qEIBLUY JO UOJIBUIPI00D aL) ‘Si0ijeuado Bupadwad Aq pepiacud
3.8 S99|AJ9S BUSY MY, 'S8INA) PUB SEI|AIBS |0 Yiomleu peeibe)u) pue pejeujp.oog B seunbel S|
sualen)s Ausw ui pue of 0] Juem A8ay] elaym seoe|d sy} a) 8jdosd }08ULLIOD SEDIAIBS SNG BAIJOBHT

SA{LUOUODE YIOMIBN

Page 21



oL

fuonde ejqein
B 8Q JOU PINoAs SIY) Ay ujBjdxa o) pepiacid USaG UOEDYISN| JUBoINS SBY “JOU ) 'pue
uonoepadus Je)JBLW By} O SMEA BU) JIBI0D 0} PSISPIEUCD Ueaq Saa)jewele AlenBesuou aARH

Juonuaaiul JusweAol 1oy
PeBU BY] Sa)e)iSsaneu 1ey) PAyIIUep] Aleajo usaq aunjie) A1cie|NBaJ JO uojoayiedw| 18yJew B sBH

:Bupyse At Jamsue By} 5| uongnbel 18y uojdwnsed ey} eBusjeya o1 pesu [Im Ayl ‘39INPE DdY
Buimoj|od *{esed Jjwouode By jo Jed) SjoBdw) asieaps Ajepueiod ey) yBlamino sweyas ey) Wiy
Buisiie syjeuaq |Biuelod ey 18y} SEA|ISWAL) AJSES SIENBLL-UQISIDBR 1B} 2uns ayew o) Juspoduw

80 [Ix 1) JeXJBW SNY [BAC] 8L Ul uojueAIe]Y) es(Bidde 0} PESN & YIOMSBWEY YO0E USSID) By) §|

‘sjuswpedep Juawwianol ssaloe
abueyo AlojenBas Busiesdde 1oy [DdY) eelwwoy Adjog AloleinBay oy} AY PAPUSLILLODE) S| PuE
SUOjS|oep JuaLyseAUl puB Alyjod Lodsuen Loddns o1 14 eyl Aq pajidde AguB.InD S| JIOMSWEYy sy}

‘(o583 Juewefeusw) pe.

=

ep 8q ue)
‘{9589 |EjoUBUY) BJQBPIOYE Al[BIDUBLY

|R[aeWwo) 31geIA Al[BIDI8WIWED S| pUB peinac.d 8g ue)

‘(9589 I|WOU0IB) ABUOLL 0} SN|BA 5alBISUOLIBQ

‘(8382 9|6ey81)E) s0A08[0 AJ|0d 21qnd JapIA YiMm 14
IUONUeAIBIUI YL JOYIBYM SYSE JJOMILEL]
2yL "uoja|nBa) yexiew o) sebuey o sloedw) jBRusiod eyl esildUE O} YIOMELBY B|GE}NS B Sepianid
SO0F USBJS, AUl Wl PRUNING |8POLU 858D @AY S,ANseal) e ‘sewwuelBoid 1o siosloid ‘se|o)jod
Juswweach Jewy)o 4o (esieidde ey} yym sy "ebueyd Joy asea Buj|ledwad B Aq psjoddns eg RINGYs
SiSPOW 183JBW SAIBUIE]E JO LORSNPEIIUI 8y} YBNOJY) Je3IBLL SNY |BIO| 3L Ui SUSAIBI O} S|BSCd0.d

JeyaeW Sy} ul eUSAIIU] O) esed ay) Buidojeaeg 97|
“(Atan ongnd e S8) 3JomIau LOdSUE) (|2IBA0 By} 0} 8suBLIOdwW| JB1)

SNsJeA (Ss8UISNG ||B168) B sB) SieBuassed o) s82Wses Buipiacid =8 popueBal aie SAOAIBS SN YIIUM
Ol Jueixa ou Aq pepinb S| Sa0IAIBS SNQ [BI0] 1340 IVUSN|JU Y17 Ja)1BSIG 0} aasep euy) ‘ed ul )see| 1y

"uonyedwon es|yIUBY IAFOYYS o) sjodep B yons selioe) 2189)e)s ) 558008

40 souelodW) Sy} pUe “JUBLUAD|AWS JO SUDIPUOD PU' SWLE} pul ABd S19AUP SNQ JO UDIESIDEUES
0 }|nsa1 S8 85B88.0UI 0} S50 Jnogey SOy [Buajed aL] SB Yans sanss| (exoesd pejyBlyBly Auspy
'8831AI0S 40 ubjsep ey} Jaac BaueNjUl |BiJRWWOD Bujuie]s pue JoJosE alqnd pue sjeaud By] useamleq
SeAjjuany| pue sjsu Buious|eq AQ sjuswsSBUBLIE diysIBULEd JU9.ND O] SIBUSY J|GRISPISUCO MBS
S0Py 183181 JURLIND BY} LI SBARUITU| |BI2IBLILIOD JO SHJAUBq By} PUB SSIYIUEY & Bujuun: JO S1S0a
8L PEIEWIEIISPUN PBL S| 7 181 PE1BIE JE0Y "$EE WS U] uol1adwod saoidul) puk Siqesedo
uaamaq piayy Buiseid ey) |eae| 01 S38IyDUBIL 10 AJUN)O0do UB @8S PIp SIURIUS MBU [ERuejod

pue s10)8s8d0 JB|[BLIE BLIOS LBNOYIE “I6}IBLW SNY Y] JO [0UOD 1] YHM PO1BIO0SSE SYSH JO

ebue) e paiybiyBly pue Buisiyouely Jo sy3ausg jeruelad eyl INOge |BARdEDS A(|R)AUSE Biam sioleredQ

"193 8Ll |BDO| 41y} LO SIURLLLCLAY Ay) uo uc)ljedwoa

10 510818 35)9np2 puB MB| LoRREdLCD 4O sexaduoa *Bupiom diysiaulied Jo sailnap
| 8yi payEiyGlY puk $}ay.eW [820] JIBY) JO SAUBLLIDME Y} YlMm PBYSIIESSID 8q 0] Ajey)|
8JOLU DS(R 3Jam 53| d "Buisiyouel} ySnaiyl PeAIIYoR 9q AjUC PINOD PUB J1EXBLL €NG SY) 40 55690NS

84} 0] |BDIID S@ YIS RJem SI0j08) 85aY ] 'S163IEW SNY 2y 0} seBuByd JaAD [oUCE PUB 'LO)BULICL)
Pes||eaued ‘sese} pasipiepue)s "Bujieyon peleibequl ‘uonew.o)u) JaBuassed JO uononpoII)

U] S8 yans 58An28iqo ay123cs BUIAGIYDA JO BIUBLIOCL BUY} PUE XJOMIIU LODSURI] JapIM SU]

Ui J8sew $hg gy 4o Wo)JBu|puo0D pue ucielBel sayeall Jo) pesu ey JyByYBIY 01 Ajes| 210w 2Jam
ABy | 's1ex.ewW 1830] Jwyl Joy Bujsiyouely Jo 1oedsaid By Jnoge saysod aiow AllJauab eiem g3 4

. "SHSU BY] 8540 0}
582.NAS 1BL10 40 JUsLeAoh (erjusd woyy Buipuny |puchippe JuedyuBiE JNOYYM [SPOW SS|YZURY By}
ans.nd o} 95004D 10U PINOAM PUB JEXIBLU [B20] 113K} JO 9UBLLIOLST Buy} LM PesEs(d UBAS JO JUaJLOd

BJ8M PBJNFUOD Sy 341 JO 1S0W PuB UCIHBdLICT B5ES.IOU| PINOM Buis|youely 18U} [Bandeos aiam

aluog "saoiA1as 40 uBisep eyl pue ASUSIaIYS U Bl08YE aSIAPE [BJUBI0d B PUB JEYJBLU ENG BU) 4O

uBisap 8y} JeAa 8ouIN|LY 8orjod 1618218 JO 510818 ULIE] BUO| AU} JO AIBA BIBA SIOP|OLSYEIS AUBJ

UOIUBAIZIU JUBLULIBAOE UO SMalA JBP|OYBHEIS

‘S]JBJUCY Joy pIg O} JOU JO JBYlaym apinap 0) siciesado ol dn AjglBwgin

511 1SyIELW Buy) 1oy voiladulod ejgeu|esns Loddns o) SUDPUCa 818850 O] diel UBD JUSILISACE

813 15|Iym "JBAMOH 'S3DjAIES SNY |B20| JO AlddNs puB 40} puewap 3y Bupuedxs woyy siyausg
[BJUSLUILIOJIAUS PUB |BDS ‘DWUOUCOS JBPIM 64) BS||BS) 0} 8d0DS BU) Pue LapIAcId JJM)onJiseu|

ey} pue sJojesado sng ueemlaq sealueow ubjie o) pasu syl :Bugey/ew pue BujpueIq UOWWCD
aplacud puB £30jA19S pue 58.8) eeBajul o) pesu ey) :Buipnau) suonoeedw) 3eyIBW [EjUa)0d

NGy Fy) 40 B81Y) Sse.ppe 0} dos Yl Sy syl apmaid Buisiyoues) JSpun Bjge|IeAR S18A3) A3jj0d By |

‘ubjsep 108)3u00 |njessa YEnouyl paieBiiw ag o1 ejge eg

(4 Jaaamoy sabElueapesIp 958Y1 JO BLUICS ‘SUOjeInp 1981U0D 18BUO| JBAC A||Bpedse paanpas
54 ABLU S8AUZOU 3ALIEAWED J8Y) PUB JUSILE B J0U ABW SI0RIUCT O} UORREdLOT {SIUBUS

ABU [eualod GuIpnoul) SI/2PPIG 0} SALJBINE 8.8 SI0BJIUCD SES|UN JBY) SUIR0UOD OS|B 8.8 BJBY ]
"|SPAW 18518 BAJBUISHE UB O} SjuawisBuRLE JuRLND wou) BrucsuBl] Im PEBIDOSE $)50T Sk
118A4 SB "SUORIPUCD Jayuew BuiBueys o) pucdsal 0) SeAlUBI) JOjEssd0 BujusiBEAs PUB |7 SYI UO Ysu
laueuy Jejeell Bulscdily 4o 1500 By} 18 SELUCO SIY) J3AaMOY ‘Buljey.ew pue Bujpuelq pus seojuas
pue s3.ey Jo uoneiBaju| By} J8A0 |0NUCD JayeslB BuUIPNOU) “SBDIAIGS NG |200] Jo A|ddNS pue pueLlSp
8u] 1eA0 aausnjjul JejeelB w17 ay) sJayo (19RLOD 1800 $50U6 B Japun) yorosdde Buigiyouely By

Buisiyaues!

‘Bupexiew pus Bujpueiq UOWLICD pue ‘S3diAas pue 5618} pajelBelu

SE YONs pPaJaAlisp 8q AjISe2 10UUED 1Y) SBINIea) SWOS I8 8IBY) ‘N)SSA0INS 216 sdiysieuped
UM UIAB JBABMOH Y17 BYI o seljuoiid 9y 9} Buipucdsel Buug BwBS BY) 18 1S(IYM ‘UOREBAOLIL|
pue Asuaioys ybnouyl sisBusssed jo speau sy} Jaaw o} sioeiedo Joy Saajuasy] ays BuluBlLIBW
Buipnjoul jepol pagenBa.sop 8yl Jo saInies; aAsod eyl J0 AUBLW Suj8)3) yoecidde diysieuped sy

'yoeo.dde diyssavped syl Jo) Joddns eayod jo

08| @ §f 813} 213y JO Je)10 UED JpulEd YOBE 184M U| SOUBIBGU UE S1 618Y) B15YM 'padoj@aep ||om
Jou 2. sdiysuona)e) eraym sjsaleiul Buoijued yjim si0jeiedo s|g[Nuw 2.8 2181 818y PRISPLIY

8q ueo diyssaulied e ujylm uojienobau BA0811T "SaDIAIBS PUB E8[OIYBA PROUEYUS Bupiaoid sicielado
pue juewwsBeuBLL DiyyB)] PUB BINONNSeyU| pesuByue Buipinaid SeRLUOWINE [BD0] A)jBIdAL — JaVI0 313 0)
seAjjuedu| spiaoud 0) Jeuuad yoae Jo AJj|ige 2yl puB SBAJS8I00 UDLIWGD 163 BW 8L 4O BupuBls/opun
paJeys B eunbal Ajeisusl sdiysiauped ‘PaAaILOE e UBD 1By O} SHW)| 2J8 818Y] INg 'ALigels

pue uopeiBeju| 3omlau ‘Guneyal) ‘sesy Jano onb SNIEIS 8L O} UOSIEedLIOD Ul BaUeN|U JB1EaIB
a1 343 spinold ued sdiysseulied Juelxe awos 04 1&yJew syl dojeasp O} Jaylsbio) sicieiedo

Pue sy| 7 BuiBupg Ag saanse(qo jo ebuel Jspim B 8ABIUDB ©) PBSN S0 URS PUB SBJAIES SNQ JBI0|

Jo Ajddns pue puBLuep BU} BauINGY O 17T BY1 JO Al||qe ay) usLpBuB.S uED |spow diysiauned ey

sdiySIGuLIE

‘pIlRUIPIO0D

Allny sABME 30U 3JE PUB SaLIOYINE 1800) Jo SUBd 1o Jo A)gisuadsel By} uayo aJe sainljod BsaLy)
'830IAJEE SNQ B20| 0 Juelioduw] IS|IyAn S3131od DILUOLCOA PUB JSM-PUEB| "LOOSUB)} JBpIM SjdwEexs

40} "s1EX.BW SNQ [820| LD seloljod AYI0yINE |830| JOYID Jo Bauenjul ay) asiuBooel o) Juelodw| 086 S| 1

*8S|YIuBY ENg B JO UDIINPOILI A} JO
40084300 yim Bupyiiom diysisuped yBnoiy) sauaniyu) ja)eaid yees Aew v 2y ‘seanaalgo Bueiyoe

Page 22



zl

"saAnaelqo |aao

Jeajep ) djsy 03 yoecudde paso|iel B sesnbe) yaee pur enbiun S| 18view SNY [BIO] YIBT "SINLOYINE
|B30| puB Si0)&1ad0 ‘s afiusssed uo suonusauelul jo 1oedw) 84 JBpISUOD AjnyaIea 0} pasu B 8| 88U
‘ebueyo 1o} aunssaid | aJeuy a1eypa "Buiyiou op o eq ABL LORCO 1530 A4} SSRUOYINE |8I0] AUBLU JOZ

‘a|qeinau &) Bujpuny JaAedxe jeucilppe "xogqeUe) oy)

yBnoJyl papun) Bq 10UUED S})}8UBQ J(LLIOUCIS JBPIA BINJES D] PAPBEU JUBLLIESAUY JO [BAB| BY] BISLYAA
‘uognios ey 4o Led ag o) AR 5| 5i0BIedo pue Sy 10} SPJBMAI PUB SYSI PAOUE|EG YIIM SBOIAIBS
U 1S8AU| O JUBLILOAALE 8|QB)S B Bupeasd uay) Jax ew eyl maB o) S| BA98[G0 Ay} §| "SBI8) MO] puE
880jAs95 Ajljenb yBiy o Ajearisod puodsas s1aBuassed 18y; JBaj0 5| )| ‘peidope §| yOECIAE JBABIBUAA

*88AR08[00 JuawuIsA0b JBpLwm

€ 8}NqUIUQD JBY) SBDAISS JBAIED PUR SPRAJU JALWOISMI JeRW 0] SJ0181ed0 [BnpApUl 0) dn uay) S|

1 "0S Op 9] 18XJ8W By} Joy SuoR|puod B By} BPIACID O) PUB BIQE|IBAR SPUN) 8L} JOJ JBAISR OF 1338w
BU) g)uem, ) Jeum Appads o) Aiduns 5| 8|0l 8,Juswiiaact sy "yoeoidde peseq-|ecd eu u| 'seyoecidde
,eAnduoseard, o) pasoddo se uoiyes|ueBio Jex/ew 0) Sayarc.dde peseq-eoB, | selalu) Buisealow

5| BIBY] BJ8YM BINJINIISELUI PEYIOMIBU JBYLO JO LciBIedo 8L Jo LEaY 3y) I8 5 S|YL "$IAUSDUL

0} puodsey pug pwosd ueD Sy pue sia)esedo may o) 14BNoyY] BuoLw e O} paau SIBpIoYaYBIS

"LUl8} HOUS @y} U 1Se3| J8 ‘Juswsbeurw oy en eacidw) Jo/pus 81njonnsei| A0IW] 0] SpUny payiwl|
SBY Y17 84} sieym sluBLIBeIBe Bulpuiq OlU) J8Jud ©) S10181300 SSIAUBIU| O] 1T Byl Jo Al[IgB BY) S|
laasmoy Buissiw S| 18YAA "SBIIAIBS SNG [B20] 46 AIddNS puB puBLISP BY) SDUBNYUL O} AHIGIXS]) JO (B3R

18818 B yym $ucpeieda pue sy Buipiaoud *||8as s3i0m yoecudde diysisuled ay) SBJUEISU| ALBWI U

“SJUIBJISUOD 18Bpnq o} jo8[gns ‘seluoong

183 1B 33uaN)u| 0] SeLoYINe Jof Aljiqixe)} Jejealdl sapiacud yorodde Buls|Loues) BUE 'IBABMOH,
"suofjesado sng pue JueweBBUBL 31184 ‘8NJONIISEYL| uSaaaq uopaibelu| JalesiB peau JaYy) SEaIe
i Ajjlejosddse ‘sawwoaIne 1836w souen|jul o) s1eAs| Adyod JO JaS [BUCRIPPR Uk Spiacsd uea seyoeqdde
Buisiysuely pue diysseulsed Ylog 'senioelqo 18pjoysyeEls JaAISp 0) |18y S1exBw pelejnbal-ep aleyp

sybnoyy e £'1

"Joda) syl
10 g UDIR8S v PRJUSSHId S| 1838 BY) U] BuBALelU| O} 8sed AU} BUIYS)gBISa UD UCISSNDSIP J8ylnY

"Aljua }8)JBW PUB JoNPUCD BI0JEI8dD

Jaao sauan|jul 1e1ae.lb sy BuguriB A seuwooino ascadw) o) peusylBusils aq os|e pinoo |apow
thysieunied eyl pua sieas) Aoyod Bupsxa Jo 85N Je18g BB PNDD Sy 17 “S]aYJEL (B90] Ul $3NSS|
Q) UORNOS Ajua ey] 10u sea Buisiyously 8Y) JuawaalBe [8I1BuUBE 5BAL BIBL) BIBP|OYB%E]S SE0I0Y

L

"Wus] LWnipsuw 8y}
Ul 8ouBwLoylad 1838w Sng Buluiwlepun Juaaeid o} paBeuew Ajan)196)e B UBD SYSU |BUCI)SURL]

'S6OIAISS BEIYDUEL,
unJ pue UBISEP 01 S|4S PUB SBAINAS3) JUSPIPNS Yl “sBue| Alenjelel 5| BaJe YL By)

"@slyouBl} ey AQ pe1sesd ALyqel| enueass |Buolippe sy} sbeuew o) Ayige sy}
PuB SBD|ASS U SjUSWaA0IOWI pUny ©1 AUjNGE pUB JUBLIHWWOI B ‘poddns (ea)ljod 8j0E)S S1 818Y |

“Sanpoaldo
lap|oyexels 8AT|yoe 0) pajiey sABy [apow diysieuped eyl s8 yons sesnsEew Aoljod Busng

. '$30IAIS NG Joddns
0} paubisap Aoyod Bupjied pue yJomisu pEOJ ‘8sn Pue| Y Adijod Jiodsues) pejesBalul uB S auay)

‘gsaacud

WawHINe0Jd paJen|ap pue peubiisep-|iesm B pua sjodep se yons sjasse J)Bales1s 0] 858908 ‘9zZ)S
JoeJUOD 8BuE) ABAIRRM & JNBDI PINOM 51y, "9S|YIUR)) B JO} UOINSdWOD BAND9YS jo 1oadsad
pooB e g asay) pue Ajjjents mo| JO 828 SB0|AIBE “183IBL BU) U uciljeduInd yo yae| B S| eusl))

'S@0IMBE SNq J0 Alyenb ey) o suopdanad and aacuduw 0) LOdsUB) 4O SIpOoW
18I0 pUB 821AIBS SN UsBMIaY UOIIBIGS)Y| JB118q JO} PeeU B &t 818y} pue xa|dwod s.e suiae)ed du|

"Wiys (epow Bumaiyae pug uopsabuocy
Butonpes “yomieu podsues) ey) Jo SouBLLLCUSd fBISAD 3Y] JOj JUBLIOOW] 818 S5BDIAIBS SNY

“JBULBW JOL-PE BI0W B

U] 510puI0d [BnpIAPU) Bugatie) J0 YJomieu [eRIoLIID syl Jo sdeb syl u Buljjl, UBY] JGYIE] SISEq
FPIM NJOMIBU B U AJjenb eopues Bupnaidw) pue seus) Buganpal AQ ‘souswioad J1LCUCIS PUB
Hodsuel} |830] SDURYUS 0 [00] ADnod B $2 S301M98 SN U BOY 158AU| O] BIISOP B SBY W17 8yl

‘818UM HBIA BIOLU 8] O}
A1 5111 peanpanu) eq o) 8| Buisiyauey §) 1ey) 1seBBNs smapuajul Japjoyayels sy o} sasuodsal sy

HUlSIURY LD BMBIA JB0USYELS

*UQ|JEaNPS PUE AlED [0S ‘Wjeay Bupnjou) sjuswiedap

Juawweoli Jueseyp AQ pepinesd $a31nu9s Buljeupio-oo woyy Buisue sbuiaes Aoueoy) uajod

40 uogeujwexa ue ydwosd s1eBpng Aluoune |2oo| 0] SUALINPSe) “JaNe| S} O} UCRB8) U] 'slulB]suca
18Bpng s1e|peww) siow Guifeusw pue yimolb onuoucos wual-Buo| oddns o) SuBLWISaAU]
GuiyBLU Ueam1eq epeL eq 0} JO-8PRJ] B §) 3Jay) ‘S1aBpnd JudwuisaoB paonpas Jo pouad g u|

*AJU|BLIBoUN S[QBJOPISUOD

0} 108[gns UIBLUB) BSIN0D JO [[IM YDIYmM — S|Bsodoud By JO S]ijeusq pue 51500 pe|lsjep

B} JP|SUOD SIeXBW-UCISINBP PINOYS 1aw e §18a) Aajjad DiBalens ay) aiaym AjuQ) 'snuIBLaduUN

Jo oBue) epim eyl uealB souapias wo ilem s1edosdde eoeid piNOYS S163BW-UDISIDBE (82O

pus abueyd o} ased sy} Buissssse o) elodw) Auaa S) Juswssesss Aolod (|BJIGAD BY] "UDSES) SIU} JO

Aga (njBujuesw B bl 39Ipald o) piey Alea 8B SB[QEIBLUL

pue s8Je} JoAD BouBnyw [Eanod BuiseeoU| puB JE3IEBW SNM 8U) Ul SBARUEIU) BD/8LULLIDS Bupnpal
1o s108le uus) Buo| ay) S8 yans syl 'siolsiedo Jo esucdsel sy ucdn puedsep AsLp SB 101pesd
Q1 1MdJIP 240U YANLW BIe 1NG PAWINSSE Bq PNo? uolpedulos pesealou| Jo) [ejuelod Byl Se yans
£18U}J0 "paInseall 8q pNGO SEINCJ 35| BUC)E) O |BIUR10d 3] S yINs Siskdul) S5yl 40 DS "uL3)
J1aBuo| 8y} J8A0 Jualedde swooaq Auo JyBiL LoIyMm puB AluBnb pue SSBESE O} JNALYIP B8J8 LDIYAA
syoadw) Buifiues spia aasy ||wm pale|nBas §1 1) ABa 8 PUB 1818w 3yl Jo aunjons syl BuiBueyn

JIUNCODEe ClU| UeNE]
s]0BdW| [BINDIABLSY JO/PUE $20uSNbAsSU0d papusiuun [guaiod Aue pue palelsucwep Alesi
Ueaq uopasjiaduul 183 BLL JO SASNED Y] JD81102 O UoUaAaI) Alo)einBau ay) 4o AllIge JU) saH

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

I eeds Report author: Ray Hill
ﬁm Tel: 247 6334

Report of Director of City Development

Report to Scrutiny Board (City Development)
Date: 17th February 2016

Subject: Leeds Cycling Starts Here (Tour de France legacy) - update

Are specific electoral Wards affected? [ ] Yes Xl No
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and [ ] Yes X No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [] Yes X No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [] Yes X No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. This report presents an update on the preparation of the Leeds Cycling Starts Here
(LCSH) Strategy, Action Plan and long term cycling ‘Ambition and Strategy’ for the city,
and sets out a draft timescale for consultation on these documents. The last update
report was considered at Scrutiny Board on 13t January 2015.

2. Activity has continued across of range of areas geared towards increasing access to
and participation in cycling across the city, including plans to improve safe cycling and
cycle friendly facilities.

3. The report outlines the range of work both currently underway and being planned as
part of the Cycling Starts Here legacy programme.

Recommendations

4. The Board is requested to consider the Leeds Cycling Starts Here programme update
and provide comments on progress to date, including views on the draft Strategy,
Action Plan and long term Ambition and Strategy prior to wider consultation.

Page 25



1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

Purpose of Report

To update Scrutiny Board on progress on Tour De France Legacy — Leeds Cycling
Starts Here draft Strategy, Action Plan and long term Ambition and Strategy for
cycling, and seek feedback accordingly.

Background information

Members of scrutiny Board considered the ‘Tour de France Legacy for Leeds-
update’ at their meeting on the 13t January 2015. Officers undertook to produce
regular updates for the Boards consideration. Since the last update Leeds has
hosted the hugely popular Tour De Yorkshire cycle race with massive crowds and
media interest at the final days racing in Roundhay Park.

Cycling development work has been ongoing across a broad range of cycling based
initiatives since the last Board report. This paper seeks to provide an update on key
developments, projects and initiatives that are underway, and present for discussion
and comment the following draft documents;

e The Leeds - Cycling Starts Here (LCSH) Strategy on a page
e The CSH Action Plan (abridged version for clarity)
e Along term ‘Ambition and Strategy’ for Leeds (in preparation, not appended)

The report also presents a draft timetable for stakeholder and public consultation on
the above documents in order to establish a schedule and timeline for delivering the
LCSH programme over the short, medium and long term.

Main Issues

Current Developments:

As reported in the 13" January 2015 Scrutiny Board report, a tremendous amount
of work has already been put in place to develop and promote cycling opportunities,
including for example:

e The ongoing development of the Leeds cycle network, through the city connect
scheme (Phase 1) due to open in May 2016. Through City Connect phase 2
Leeds have been successful in securing funding for an additional 7km of super
cycle highway to the North and South of Leeds City Centre, improvements to
city centre cycle access in Leeds, neighborhood improvements to provide
access for pedestrians and cyclists, and activity to enable access to a bike and
encouragement to ride. Public consultation on phase two will start in spring
2016.

e The development of cycle hubs in 3 locations across the city, including the
opening of Yorkshire Bike Library’s at Fearnville Bike Hub and Moor Allerton
Library, and a number of Bike Donation Stations including at the LCC One Stop
Shop at 2 Great George Street. Feanville hub became the first ‘Cycle Yorkshire’
Bike Library to open in Leeds. The centre operated by Cycle Pathways have

Page 26



delivered cycle hire, 9 ‘Sky Ride Local’ guided rides, adult go:cycling training
sessions and maintenance sessions, Cycle 4 Health Rides, Sportivate activities,
and a Bike Festival with over 150 attendees. They have worked with 8 local
primary schools to delivering free cycle sessions.

Other cycling hubs in development are the traffic-free closed circuit track at
Boddington Fields Weetwood which is well advanced, and ongoing development
work to create a competition standard mountain bike course, a skills
development centre for young people, and graded tracks to suit all abilities and
adapted bikes at Middleton Park.

Delivery of Sky Ride City 2015 mass participation closed road ride (7000
participants on a poor weather day) and 50 Sky Ride local rides (current
programme has completed 47 rides with 325 riders taking part). This programme
includes a British Cycling Ride Leader pool of 40 available to Leeds;

Delivery of cycling opportunities for women including a led ride programme
(Breeze), Health 4 All project, and specific support through the National
Governing Body (British Cycling) Place Pilot funding, to appoint a women’s
activator post with a focus on cycling in priority communities;

Delivery of ride leader training, for example in March 2015 at the Fearnville bike
hub, 16 people completed the Level 1 Ride Leader course delivered by British
Cycling with funding from LCC and West Yorkshire Sport; the ride leaders where
from local clubs including Alba Rosa and 3" sector organisations such as ZEST,
Black Health Initiative and The Works Skatepark Charity. Further ride leader
training courses are proposed for spring 2016;

We continue to teach young people to ride through Bikeability, and the recently
awarded contract will see over 6500 young people receive Bikeability training
across Leeds in 2015/16.

As part of the go:cycling initiative, provided by the WYCA and LCC Highways
and Transportation, over 200 adult cycling training engagements have been
delivered in Leeds since April 2015.

Cyclists’ safety is an ongoing concern following a national increase in cycling
casualties as a consequence of the rise in popularity of cycling. Safe and
considerate cycling is being addressed through the Influencing Travel Behaviour
- Road Safety Team, and the Safer Roads Partnership — ‘Someone’s Son’
campaign and website (http://someones-son.co.uk/cyclists/). Recent work has
concentrated on the ‘Look Out’ campaign that encourages everyone - drivers,
bikers, cyclists and pedestrians to look out for one another, to share the roads
and the responsibility of keeping safe.

The Council has been working very closely with British Cycling and Sport Leeds
in looking at the future sport cycle facility priorities in the city. This has resulted
in the proposal to develop a closed circuit cycle track at Weetwood, and plans
are now well developed with the University of Leeds to deliver a new facility.

Page 27


http://someones-son.co.uk/cyclists/

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.2.4

3.2.5

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

Leeds Cycling Starts Here — Vision and Strategy 2020

The Council led LCSH Programme Board is chaired by Councillor Roger Harington
and consists of representatives from British Cycling (the national governing body for
cycling sport), a representative from the Leeds Cycling Forum (a public meeting for
cycle campaigners and cycling groups, including Leeds Cycle Campaign, Sustrans
and CTC), the university sector, and officers from Leeds City Council. It meets
approximately every 8 weeks.

The Programme Board have developed a draft strategy-on-a-page. The strategy
(see appendices) is a high-level document intended to capture in summary the
Aims, Themes, Objectives, Collective Values and Success Indicators of the Leeds
Cycling Strategy and Legacy ambition. This plan on a page is designed to the make
communication of the strategy and consultation a straightforward task, and will be a
working document for the Programme Board as it takes the long term planning and
development of the vision for cycling going forward.

The strategy will cover, initially, a period of 5 years (2016 — 2020) and will be
formally reviewed after 3 years to ensure it is still fit for purpose and reflects the
ambitions for cycling for the city into the future. The review process will be driven by
the extent of change expected in the public sector over the next few years. The
Strategy includes a number of high level targets around participation and cycle
safety.

The Strategy is intended to concur with the forthcoming Single Transport Plan
(STP) and Cycling Prospectus being developed by the West Yorkshire Combined
Authority (WYCA) expected in summer 2016. The Strategy’s approach is also fully
aligned with the wider ambitions established in the recent Executive report dated
218t October 2015 — Our Transport Vision for a 21st Century Leeds; and the
Council’s Breakthrough Project.

Scrutiny Board are requested to provide feedback on the Strategy-on-a-page
document.

Leeds Cycling Starts Here - Action Plan 2020

The supporting Action Plan, which accompanies the Strategy, contains a schedule
of planned and aspiring cycling schemes, projects and activities, some of which are
funded and programmed and others which are currently aspirational. The funding
situation is complex and especially difficult given the ongoing austerity measures
announced at the recent comprehensive spending review.

The Action Plan consists of short term (1-3yrs), medium term (3-5yrs) and sets the
scene for long term (5yrs+) plans and suggestions for delivering the LCSH Strategy.
Many of the individual projects listed are dependent upon funding being secured
from a number of sources, both internal e.g. the Local Transport Plan, and external
e.g. The WY+ Transport Fund, and central Government funding. This means it is
not possible to commit to these proposals with certainty, but funding opportunities
are expected to emerge in time.

Page 28



3.3.3

3.34

3.3.5

3.4

3.4.1

Examples of some key projects and activities identified in the Action Plan for the
first 5 years (2016 - 2020) include;

e Complete City Connect Cycle Superhighway Phase 1, and commence City
Connect Phase 2 link routes
Establish a timetable of mass participation and led cycling events and rides to
enable more people to participate in cycling

e Establish new Cycle Hubs and Bike Libraries to provide access to a bicycle for
everyone

e Engaging in a wider marketing and communications presence to ‘normalise’
cycling, including a ‘one-stop’ internet based portal for cycling information
(‘normalise’ cycling is where cycling is something everyone feels comfortable
doing)

e Ensure the highways network is ‘cycle proofed’ and connected, and facilities are
provided through the planning process, and ensuring modern design guidelines
are used on all highway schemes

e The development and delivery of cycle training and awareness packages with
an emphasis on training young people in cycling skills and safety

e Work with businesses to promote cycling in the city’s workforce

e Continue to work in partnership with stakeholders, primarily through the Leeds
Cycle Forum, to deliver the best environment for cycling

e Ensure cycling opportunities are available, in particular, for women, young
people and cyclists with a disability

e Explore the options available to support a ‘city bike hire’ scheme in the city.

Actions beyond 2020 are more aspirational in nature and currently involve
predominately extensions to the Leeds Core Cycle Network. Future actions are
more dependent on other large scale changes proposed to the city centre
environment, in for example the City Centre Breakthrough project and the Councils
Transport Vision for the 21st Century. The Action Plan will therefore be updated in
time to reflect the developing situation. Consequently, actions after 5 years are
more akin to aspirations in the long term ‘Ambition and Strategy’ which is discussed
below.

An abridged version of the Action Plan is appended to this report, and Scrutiny
Board is requested to provide comment. It is intended to consult on the content of
the full Action Plan (see timetable below), and revise as necessary as funding
opportunities emerge.

Leeds Cycling Starts Here — Long term Ambition and Strategy

As part of the LCSH Strategy, the Programme Board have been considering
preparing a long term ‘Ambition and Strategy’ - this would be a policy plan
statement that puts into context the ambition of the city to embed cycling in its
development, transport, health, environmental, and cultural offer, and making Leeds
the ‘Best City’. The ‘Ambition and Strategy’ will reflect the extent to which Leeds
wants to be recognised as a great city for cycling, inspiring people to be active and
cycle regularly in a safe and healthy environment.

Page 29



3.4.2

3.4.3

3.7

3.7.1

3.7.2

The development of a long term ‘Ambition and Strategy’ for Leeds will require a
wide engagement with stakeholders and debate, and this work will begin during the
forthcoming consultation phase, and the results of which will be presented back to
Scrutiny in due course. Scrutiny Board are requested to provide early steer and
comment on the scope and content of an long term cycling ‘Ambition and Strategy’
for Leeds.

By way of example the Mayor of London and London’s Transport Commissioner
published the following Cycling Vision in 2013. http://content.tfl.gov.uk/gla-mayors-
cycle-vision-2013.pdf

Leeds Cycling Starts Here — Consultation Timetable

A wide and detailed programme of consultation will take place with a range of
stakeholders across the city, including the stakeholders involved and engaged in
the development of the LEP, and City Connect Cycle Superhighway project, Leeds
Cycle Forum and other cycling organisations e.g. Sustrans, CTC and cycling clubs.

A draft timetable has been drawn up for stakeholder and public consultation on the
LCSH Strategy, Action Plan and Cycling Vision as follows;

Stage of consultation Date range
Present draft LCSH Strategy on a page and Action
Plan to the Sustainable Economy and Culture February 2016

Scrutiny Board for comment

Publicise the draft LCSH Strategy and Action Plan
for consultation with

a) key stakeholders in the cycling community,
Councillors, LEP, Council Services etc.

b) secondary stakeholders including Children
and Young people, transport operators,
businesses, neighbourhood committees and
voluntary organisations etc. February — March 2016

c) a more general consultation through the
Citizens Panel, and the general public
through “Talking Point’

Include in the above consultation, questions
regarding the long term ‘Ambition and Strategy’ for
Leeds

Provide consultation feedback and report to
Executive Board seeking endorsement of the Summer 2016
LCSH Strategy.

WY Single Transport Plan and
WYCA Cycling Prospectus published Summer 2016

Page 30


http://content.tfl.gov.uk/gla-mayors-cycle-vision-2013.pdf
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/gla-mayors-cycle-vision-2013.pdf
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/gla-mayors-cycle-vision-2013.pdf

41

411

4.2

421

4.3

4.3.1

43.2

4.3.3

Prepare a long term ‘Ambition and Strategy’ Autumn 2016

Stakeholder engagement and consultation on the Spring 2017
‘Ambition and Strategy’

Publish the long term cycling ‘Ambition and Summer 2017
Strategy’ for Leeds

Corporate Considerations
Consultation and Engagement

A wide and detailed programme of consultation will take place with stakeholders
across the city, as outlined above.

qu.JaIity and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration

An EDCI Screening report was completed for the first Executive Board report in
June 2014. The ambitions link to the Best Council Plan 2013 — 2017 whose
priorities are improving outcomes for children and families, getting people active
and enjoying healthy lifestyles, and developing a low carbon infrastructure for the
city. There will be a particularly strong focus in the LCSH Strategy on encouraging
women and girls to cycle, expanding the established programme of accessible
cycling for people with disabilities, taking cycling initiatives to all communities,
including faith groups, in the city and on enabling more people to have access to a
bicycle.

Council policies and City Priorities

The LCSH Strategy will help make Leeds the Best City in the UK and raise the
city’s’ profile nationally and internationally. The Strategy contributes to the
objectives of the Local Development Framework, Leeds Core Strategy, Local
Transport Plan, emerging Single Transport Plan, and Strategic Economic Plan. It
will support sustainable and inclusive economic growth by encouraging businesses
to grow and by encouraging cycling tourism. Improvements to the highways
infrastructure will help deliver a more efficient, inclusive, cleaner and safer transport
infrastructure which includes cycling.

Increasing cycle use for local travel and improving conditions for cyclists will
contribute to a better local environment including improved air quality and carbon
reduction.

Through work in the communities to encourage cycling, the legacy will increase a

sense of belonging. A programme of consultation and stakeholder engagement will
take into account the needs of local communities.

Page 31



43.4

4.3.5

4.3.6

4.4

411

442

443

444

44.5

446

The legacy will have a special focus on the benefits to young people from cycling
and the contribution this will make to a Child Friendly city through listening to the
needs of young people, and encouraging participation.

Improving people’s health and well-being by promoting healthy travel and active
lifestyles will be at the heart of the legacy planning. A legacy that helps achieve an
increase in physical activity will directly support the Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy, and its’ five outcomes, most especially the outcome “People will live
longer and have healthier lives”.

In addition, work on the Strategy contributes to the Leeds Sport and Active Lifestyles
Strategy ‘Leeds to become the most active big city in England’ with three primary
outcomes of improving health and wellbeing through sport and more active
lifestyles, widening access to sport, and nurturing success in sport across the city.

Resources and value for money

Strategy development costs have been identified to enable the programme to move
forward including the establishment of the Programme Board and to progress the
necessary work streams.

It is proposed to utilise funding secured for the TDF legacy to conduct the
consultation exercise, including managing and delivering the consultation, data
collation and analysis, and report preparation. The consultation process will place
the LCSH Programme board and Council Services in a better position to move the
programme forward.

Significant investment has already taken place over the last six years around
cycling in the city, particularly in terms of capital investment from the West Yorkshire
Local Transport Plan and the Local Sustainable Transport Fund with the support of
Department for Transport grant funding. Leeds and the WYCA have been
successful in securing investment for City Connect phase 2 which will see two new
cycling routes provided to the north and south of the city centre, linking to Phase 1.

In developing our ambitions and strategy for the future due regard will need to be
given to the sources of funding open to the Council for supporting investment in the
infrastructure, development of our facilities and for the community engagement,
outreach and promotion needed to secure a longer term cycling culture in the city.

It is intended that in drawing together the ‘Strategy’, ‘Action Plan’ and long term
‘Ambition and Strategy’ through the Programme Board these issues will be
investigated in depth to provide a sustainable basis for long term growth of cycling.

Looking to the future the development of the cycling programme will continue to rely
on funding through the Local Transport Plan and more scheme specific grants from
the Department for Transport as they are launched. In the meantime the importance
of cycling has been recognised in the LEP Strategic Economic Plan which contains
a further four cycling superhighways with a value of £60 million. The Council has

Page 32



4.4.7

also worked closely and successfully with Sustrans to develop the cycle network
programme and secure important match funding for projects.

Future investment will to a great extent depend on national government policies and
also the degree to which synergies with the developing West Yorkshire Plus
Transport Fund investment programme can be harnessed. It is nevertheless
acknowledged that in the present revenue funding climate that the challenge of
funding the essential promotional and behavioural change programmes need to lock
in the benefits of the infrastructure benefits and capture the latent potential for major
cycling growth will be demanding.

4.4.8 The Council is waiting for the publication of the Governments ‘Cycling and Walking

449

4.5

4.5.1

4.6

4.6.1

46.2

46.3

46.4

5.1

Investment Strategy for England’ the release of which is expected in 2016. This
strategy will outline the cycling ‘objectives to be achieved during the period to which
it relates’ (a minimum of 5 years) and ‘the financial resources to be made available
by the Secretary of State for the purpose of achieving those objectives’. This
national strategy clearly has the capacity to accelerate the local programme of
investment in cycling, and its publication is keenly anticipated.

Local levels of investment in the LCSH strategy will prove challenging in the current
financial environment of local authority austerity and cut backs by central
government, and the impact of the austerity cuts on our cycling ambitions should
not be underestimated.

Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In
There are no legal implications
Risk Management

The key areas of risk of the Leeds Cycling Starts Here legacy relates to the
following areas:

Reputational risk in terms of expectations raised by the Tour de France and by the
step change in funding achieved by success of the funding bid for City Connect.

Managing expectations of stakeholders. It will take time to consolidate the city’s
position, its Action Plan and long term Ambition and Strategy programmes and it will
be necessary to carry stakeholders along with this work and ensure their full
engagement in the plans.

Lack of resources to develop and deliver a meaningful legacy and this will be to a
great extent dependent on the ability of the city and partners to attract funding and
create new partnerships for delivery.

Conclusions

The establishment of the “Cycling Starts Here Programme Board” has helped to

maintain the momentum in cycling generated from the Leeds TDF Grand Depart in
2014.

Page 33



5.2

5.3

6.1

7.1

8.1
8.2

The next key stages of the LCSH legacy is the progression of the draft Strategy and
Action Plan, through stakeholder and public consultation, including collecting views
on a long term cycling ‘Ambition and Strategy’ for Leeds, and this is proposed for
Spring 2016.

Whilst future investment in cycling is not fully within Leeds City Council control
locally, all opportunities to secure central Government funding will continue.

Recommendations

The Board is requested to note the report, and consider the draft Leeds Cycling
Starts Here Strategy, and Action Plan, note the consultation timetable, and provide
comments on progress to date. Views on the preparation of a longer term cycling
‘Ambition and Strategy’ for Leeds are also sought.

Background documents'’
None.

Appendices

LCSH — draft Strategy on-a-page

LCSH — draft Action Plan (abridged)

" The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’'s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.

Page 34



e

CYCLING STARTS HERE

LEGACY

LSCAs LEEDS CYCLING STARTS HERE

STRATEGY Our Vision: Contributing Towards :

‘To inspire more people to cycle more often’

AIMS

Increase numbers of cyclists

‘Our Vision to be the Best City in the UK 2030’

Improve safety, convenience for cycling and health and wellbeing across the city

Improve environmental sustainability, better air quality and reduce pollution of all types

THEMES

Develop a thriving and active cycling city

Promote a cycle friendly city

Build a great city for cycling

Enable everyone to participate in cycling
activities targeting women, children, BME
groups and people with disabilities.

Ensure every school pupil has the
opportunity to receive cycle training, and
that adults too can access training support.
Support the development and participation
in sports cycling at all skill levels.

Support the development of cycle clubs and
social cycling groups.

Increase access to cycling with support for
bike loan and recycle schemes.

Support cycling focused community
initiatives and events.

Support people to become physically active.
Practice integrated transport planning for

livable places that is inclusive of both cycling
and walking.

Our collective values are to:

OBJECTIVES

09. Promote cycling for transport,
sport and recreation.

010. Promote good road safety
behaviours, considerate cycling, and
driver awareness.

011. Increase awareness of the
wider benefits of cycling to peoples’
mobility and wellbeing.

012. Build on the city’s reputation for
staging major sporting, cycling and
mass participation events.

013. Develop, promote and support
events for young people.

014. Make effective use of social
media and marketing to promote and
grow cycling.

015. Embed a positive cycling and
walking culture in all educational

establishments.

OUR COLLECTIVE VALUES

. Make the city centre and local centres cycle

friendly.

. Connect educational establishments to cycle

networks.

. Embed cycle friendly provision in the spatial

planning and urban design process.

. Provide for cycling in the highways network

as part of planned development and

maintenance opportunities.

. Encourage employers to provide cycling

facilities at work.

. Complete the Leeds Cycle Network

incorporating the six planned
Superhighways and including Leeds Orbital

Route.

. Increase the number of leisure routes for

cyclists and open our parks to cyclists.

. Support the delivery of Cycle Hubs and

Training Centres city wide. including

creating a cycle leisure park.

. Support the development of traffic-free and

off road cycling circuits.

V.1 Support and develop our volunteers, V.5 Work together to bring new resources and investments for our cycling,

V.2 Build a better knowledge and understanding of cyclists needs, V.6 Follow an evidence based approach to using data and research to inform

V.3 Keep up-to-date and draw on the wide breadth of technical guidance and information in
our professional work,

V.4 Build a strong and effective partnerships,

our progress.,

V.7 Celebrate city wide successes, locally, regionally and nationally,

V.8 Beinclusive of all groups, individuals and communities. and promote participation across
all groups.

|| How WE MEASURE Succkss ||

Increased number of children cycling to school. ¢ Increased cycle network routes.
Increased number of utility and leisure journeys made by bicycle. ¢ Increased number of cycle club members.
Increased take-up Bikeability places in schools. ¢ Reduced rate of fatalities and serious injuries.

Increased number of schools with good quality cycle storage.




This page is intentionally left blank



| S¢ dﬁ
CYCLING STARTS HERE
STRATEGY

Our Vision:
‘To inspire more people to cycle more often’

1-2 Year Actions

Expand the Leeds Cycle Network, complete and promote the Leeds to Bradford Cycle Super Highway.
Establish a network of bike hubs and bike libraries across the city.
Build a first-rate traffic free road circuit and cycle development centre.

Ensure best provisions for cyclists are reflected through planning processes, highway and road
maintenance schemes.

Audit and improve existing cycle network routes.
Put in place more 20mph limits around schools and on residential streets.
Extend permission to cycle within Leeds parks.
Improve safety and share best practice through targeted campaigns and engagement.
Develop and deliver cycle training and awareness packages for young people and adults.

Cycle mapping of Leeds will be updated through the completion of a comprehensive West Yorkshire
Cycle Map.

Expand the programme of mass participation cycle rides, led rides and cycling events to link with wider
city programmes / interventions

Improve and expand methods to engage with members of the public and engage with stakeholders.

Develop and establish an improved web and social media presence.

Establish the Leeds Cycling Starts Here Board to implement clear citywide cycling governance structure
both at strategic and operational levels.

Support the establishment of a city cycle hire scheme.

Leeds Cycling Starts Here
Action Plan Overview

LING STARTS HERE |
LEGACY

Contributing Towards :
‘Our Vision to be the Best City in the UK 2030’

3-5 Year Actions
Extend the availability of accessible cycling opportunities for all types of cycling.
Expand the network of cycle hubs

Expand the Leeds Cycle Network, complete Leeds Cycle superhighways city link routes to the south
bank and education district.

Canal Towpath City Centre South Improvement Scheme.

Implement a system, such as Construction Logistics and Cyclist Safety (CLOCs), that ensures drivers
of council and contractors' vehicles are appropriately trained and vehicles appropriately equipped.

Complete the introduction of 20mph speed limit on all residential roads around schools.

Ambition 2020-2030+A1

With an overall aim to ensure that Leeds is a vibrant and accessible city for cycling by as many
people as possible we will improve cycle safety and encourage cycling for utility, sport and leisure.
We aim to do this by securing national and local funding opportunities to: construct and expand the
Leeds cycle network; ensure access to bicycles and provide accessible training at all skill levels.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

I eeds Report author: S Pentelow
QO Tel: 24 74792

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development
Report to Scrutiny Board (City Development)
Date: 17 February 2016

Subject: Work Schedule

Are specific electoral Wards affected? [ ] Yes X No
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and L] Yes X No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [ ] Yes X No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [] Yes X No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

1 Purpose of this report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the
forthcoming municipal year.

2 Main Issues

2.1 A draft work schedule is attached as appendix 1. The work programme has been
provisionally completed pending on going discussions with the Board. The work
schedule will be subject to change throughout the municipal year.

2.2 When considering the draft work programme effort should be undertaken to:

¢ Avoid duplication by having a full appreciation of any existing forums already
having oversight of, or monitoring a particular issue

e Ensure any Scrutiny undertaken has clarity and focus of purpose and will add
value and can be delivered within an agreed time frame.

e Avoid pure “information items” except where that information is being received as
part of a policy/scrutiny review

e Seek advice about available resources and relevant timings taking into
consideration the workload across the Scrutiny Boards and the type of Scrutiny
taking place

e Build in sufficient flexibility to enable the consideration of urgent matters that
may arise during the year

Page 39



2.3 Also attached as appendix 2 is the minutes of Executive Board for 20 January 2016

3. Recommendations
3.1 Members are asked to:

a) Consider the draft work schedule and make amendments as appropriate.
b) Note the Executive Board minutes

4. Background papers’ - None used

" The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’'s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.

Page 40



Draft Scrutiny Board (City Development) Work Schedule for 2015/2016 Municipal Year

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2015/16

Area of review 17 June 22 July August
Inquiries Housing Mix — Terms of Reference
Annual work programme Consider potential Work Programming
setting - Board initiated areas of review
pieces of Scrutiny work (if
applicable)
Budget Budget Update

2015/16 update

Pre Decision Scrutiny

‘%UPolicy Review

i~-Recommendation Tracking

Performance Monitoring Performance Report Housing on Brownfield Land — 5 year land supply

East Leeds Extension and Orbital Road Progress

Working Groups

*Prepared by S Pentelow

Key: SB - Scrutiny Board (City Development ) Meeting WG — Working Group Meeting



Draft Scrutiny Board (City Development) Work Schedule for 2015/2016 Municipal Year

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2015/16

Area of review

9 September 14 October

18 November

Inquiries

Evidence Gathering
Inquiry — Digital Inclusion

Agree scope of review for ™
1) Digital Divide and High Speed
Broadband Provision.

2) Operation of Bus Services

Evidence Gathering
Inquiry — Digital Inclusion

Pre Decision Scrutiny

%
B
N

Sustainability of council leisure facilities and
how accessible they are to residents to
promote inclusivity

To Include:
e Leeds Let's Get Active evaluation —
Scheduled for Ex B 21 October

Sustainability of council cultural
facilities and how accessible
they are to residents to
promote inclusivity

European Capital of Culture —
The Culture Strategy —
Developing approach and
outline draft.

Policy Review

Road Safety, death and serious
injury reduction and 20mph zones.
(to conclude 20mph work from
2013/14)

Recommendation Tracking

Performance Monitoring

Working Groups

Inquiry - Housing Mix (with Scrutiny
Environment and Housing)

* Prepared by S Pentelow

Key: SB - Scrutiny Board (City Development ) Meeting

WG — Working Group Meeting




Draft Scrutiny Board (City Development) Work Schedule for 2015/2016 Municipal Year

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2015/16

Area of review

16 December

27 January

17 February

Inquiries

Budget and Policy
Framework

Evidence Gathering

Inquiry - Digital Inclusion

Evidence Gathering

Inquiry — Bus Services

Initial Budget Proposals 2016/17
and Budget Update

Evidence Gathering
Inquiry — Bus Services

Pre Decision Scrutiny

Policy Review
O

'%Recommendation Tracking
N
w

Performance Monitoring

Performance Report - Quarter 2

Flooding Update

Tour de France Legacy Review (SEC
Board 2014/15)

Flooding Update

Working Groups

Inquiry - Housing Mix (with Scrutiny

Environment and Housing)

Key: SB - Scrutiny Board (City Development ) Meeting

WG — Working Group Meeting




Draft Scrutiny Board (City Development) Work Schedule for 2015/2016 Municipal Year

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2015/16

Area of review 30 March 27 April May
Inquiries Evidence Gathering Evidence Gathering
Inquiry — Bus Services Inquiry — Bus Services
Reports

Agree Housing Mix Inquiry Report

Budget and Policy Framework
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy
Annual scrutiny review

Pre Decision Scrutiny
European Capital of Culture — The
Culture Strategy — Consultation with the
Scrutiny Board?

o)

PRecommendation Tracking

Performance Monitoring

Working Groups

Unscheduled - required:
e ECOC and the new city cultural strategy — Scheduled for Executive Board approx August 2016. Pre-decision Scrutiny required in
2016 new municipal year before submission
Housing on Brownfield Land — 5 year land supply (March or April 2016) — Discussed with A Brannen
East Leeds Extension and Orbital Road Progress ((March or April 2016) — Discussed with A Brannen
Vision for Leisure Centres
SAP and Aire Valley Action Plan

Updated — February 2016
*Prepared by S Pentelow

Key: SB - Scrutiny Board (City Development ) Meeting WG — Working Group Meeting



116

117

118

119

EXECUTIVE BOARD
WEDNESDAY, 20TH JANUARY, 2016
PRESENT: Councillor J Blake in the Chair

Councillors A Carter, D Coupar, M Dobson,
S Golton, R Lewis, J Lewis, L Mulherin,
M Rafique and L Yeadon

Late Items

There were no formal late items of business submitted, however, at the
meeting, Board Members were presented with supplementary information
providing illustrative examples of how the floods had impacted upon local
businesses, together with a draft Strategic Recovery Plan for Members’
consideration. (Minute No. 120 refers).

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
There were no Disclosable Pecuniary Interests declared at the meeting.

Minutes
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on the 16t December
2015 be approved as a correct record.

RESOURCES AND STRATEGY

Electoral Review of Leeds City Council - Council Size and Electoral
Forecast Information for submission to the Local Government Boundary
Commission for England

The Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and Communities) submitted a report
which provided the Board with an update on the Local Government Boundary
Commission for England’s (LGBCE) Electoral Review of the Council’s size
and also of the number of Wards and Ward boundaries that the City Council
has. In addition, the report presented the Council Size evidence and the
Electorate Forecast information, as appended to the submitted report, for the
purposes of approval by Executive Board prior to submission to the LGBCE.

Members welcomed the significant work which had been undertaken in the
compilation of the comprehensive documentation. In considering this matter,
the Board highlighted the crucial role played by Councillors, especially in the
local Wards that they represent, and emphasised how this role would become
even more integral, given the current projections of population growth across
the city. A point which Members emphasised needed to be strongly conveyed
to the Commission.

Alongside the submission, it was agreed by the Board that the Chief
Executive write to LGBCE in order to reiterate from a Council officer
perspective the critical role played by Ward Members in a city with the
geographic scale and diversity of Leeds.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th February, 2016

Page 45



120

In conclusion, the Board received an overview of the LGBCE’s timeframe
regarding the undertaking of the review through to the implementation of any
decisions made.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That the Council Size evidence and Electorate Forecast information, as
detailed in the addendum to the submitted report, be approved;

(b)  That the Chief Executive write to the LGBCE highlighting from a
Council officer perspective the critical role played by Ward Members in
a city with the geographic scale and diversity of Leeds.

ECONOMY AND CULTURE

Storm Eva - Recovery Plan

The Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and Communities) submitted a report
regarding the extent of the impact of Storm Eva in Leeds, and provided details
of both the emergency response undertaken at the time and also the short-
term recovery work that has followed. In addition, the report sought approval
of the strategic recovery approach proposed, with specific reference to
financial support, advice and guidance, community engagement,
infrastructure repair and flood alleviation proposals. Finally, the report outlined
the proposed approach to be taken towards a ‘lessons learned’ exercise
regarding the effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements designed to
respond to, and recover from incidents of this nature.

At the meeting, Executive Board received further information which provided
specific examples of how the flooding impacted upon local businesses,
together with a draft Strategic Recovery Plan for Members’ consideration. In
addition, during the consideration of this item, a range of images illustrating
the impact of the flooding across the city were shown.

In considering the submitted report, the following key points were raised:-

e The Board as a whole paid tribute to the resilience of the local
residents and those in the business community who had been badly
affected by the flooding. In addition, on behalf of the Council, Members
placed on record their thanks to all of those communities, Council
officers, volunteers, emergency services, partner organisations and
armed forces who had given up their time and who made valuable
contributions towards the multi-agency recovery work which had taken
place to date, and which continued to take place;

e Given the co-ordinating role which continued to be played by the
Council in response to the flooding, Members emphasised how these
recent events had illustrated the crucial role played by Local
Government in the city;

e |t was noted that building upon the flood defence schemes as originally
proposed, any future feasibility study would look to update and adapt
such schemes in order to address the issues which came to light as a
result of the recent flooding;

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th February, 2016

Page 46



e It was also highlighted that the scope of any future defence strategies
would need to be widened in order to consider all water courses
affecting the city, and which would require a co-ordinated approach
with neighbouring authorities;

¢ |n addition to the comments made around the impact upon the city
centre and those areas in close proximity to it, emphasis was also
placed upon the impact that the flooding had had upon the more
outlying communities;

e Emphasis was placed upon the associated work that the Council could
consider in order to mitigate risk of future flooding, such as the
establishment of wetlands and reviewing the flooding risk of any sites
proposed for development;

e Members highlighted the need to ensure the involvement of any
affected communities in the development of associated recovery and
regeneration programmes, whilst also providing support to enable
communities to develop their own capacity in such areas, in order to
harness the community spirit which had been present throughout the
response;

¢ Responding to an enquiry regarding the issues which had been
experienced in respect of insurance, the Board received an update on
the work which was being undertaken by the Council, in liaison with the
Association of British Insurers on such matters;

e The Board also received an update regarding the ongoing actions
being taken by the Council as part of an overarching recovery plan,
noted the latest statistics in terms of affected properties and
businesses, and received the current position regarding the delivery of
associated grant schemes.

The Chair advised that the White Paper Motion regarding the issue of
flooding, as agreed by Council on the 13t January 2016 had been submitted
to Government. In addition, the Board noted that a meeting with the Secretary
of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs attended by the Leader, the
Chief Executive and Leeds MPs had been held earlier in the day. It was
highlighted that the Secretary of State had confirmed that the establishment of
appropriate flood defence mechanisms in Leeds was a Government priority,
together with an acknowledgement that the current city centre flood defences
were not adequate. However, it was noted that no commitment was made by
the Secretary of State regarding additional funding to provide flood alleviation
measures in Leeds. It was noted that representations had been made at the
meeting that the establishment of adequate flood defences, which included
the initial development of an associated feasibility study, was urgently
required. Members were also informed that a further meeting would be
scheduled with the Secretary of State in order to progress such matters, and it
was highlighted that all-party representation at that meeting would be sought,
together with support from the local business community.

RESOLVED -
(a) That on behalf of the Executive Board, all staff, partners, local Ward
Members, community representatives, volunteers and all those

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th February, 2016

Page 47



(c)

(d)

(9)

(i)

affected by the floods be thanked for their efforts in supporting the
recovery operation;

That the implementation of a Council Flood Emergency Management
Team, which is led by the Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and
Communities) and which met for the first time on the 4th January
2016, be noted;

That it be noted that the Local Authority is working with other
Councils and partners, especially Calderdale Council, West Yorkshire
Police, West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue, the Environment Agency
and other key partners on the recovery work at both a local and West
Yorkshire level;

That the financial support and advice arrangements which have been
put in place to support affected householders and businesses, be
endorsed;

That the funding provided by Government to support the schemes
detailed at paragraph 3.1.2 of the submitted report be noted, and that
the Deputy Chief Executive be requested to keep a record of all
relevant expenditure associated with responding to Storm Eva;

That the Director of City Development be required to work with the
Environment Agency in order to submit a report to Executive Board
as soon as possible on the city’s flood alleviation developments,
including plans for seeking Government support for progressing
phases 2 and 3 of the Leeds Flood Alleviation Scheme;

That the Chief Executive be requested to write to the relevant
Secretary of State requesting the urgent approval of £3m to allow for
preparatory and design work to commence on Phase 2 of the Leeds
(River Aire) Flood Alleviation Scheme, and which seeks a firm
commitment from Government to support both phases 2 and 3;

That the Director of City Development be required to work with the
Environment Agency in order to identify measures that could be
undertaken to increase flood resilience for all communities affected
Storm Eva;

That the Director of City Development be required to complete a full
assessment of all impacts of Storm Eva on city infrastructure, and to
develop proposals for the necessary repair and rebuild work that
maybe necessary, including work required on Linton Bridge;

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th February, 2016

Page 48



()

(k)

(m)

That the Director of City Development be requested to consider the
development of a regeneration based approach towards helping
Kirkstall recover from Storm Eva,;

That the Director of City Development be required to make
arrangements to undertake a statutory Section 19 investigation into
the causes and impacts of the Storm Eva flooding event;

That the Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and Communities) be
required to oversee the development and delivery of a Storm Eva

Strategic Recovery Plan, and also be requested to report back to

Members on this plan, together with a further update on recovery

efforts, in March 2016;

That the Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and Communities) be
required to undertake a lessons learned exercise and provide a
formal report on this to the Council’'s Corporate Governance and
Audit Committee;

That the Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and Communities) be
required to ensure that the experiences of, and impacts in Leeds are
fed into the national review of flooding.

(Councillor R Lewis left the meeting at 4.05 p.m., during the consideration of
this item)

DATE FOR PUBLICATION: FRIDAY, 22ND JANUARY 2016

LAST DATE FOR CALL IN
OF ELIGIBLE DECISIONS: 5.00P.M., FRIDAY 29™ JANUARY 2016

(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12.00noon on
Monday, 1st February 2016)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 10th February, 2016

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 27 January 2016
	7 Inquiry into Bus Service Provision
	Appendix 1 KPMG Exec Summary

	8 Leeds Cycling Starts Here (Tour de France legacy) - update
	1 Strategy one page overview
	Cycling Action Plan V5-1
	Overview


	9 Work Schedule
	work schedule template Feb 1516
	Minutes of Executive Board - 20 January 2016


